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Financial Highlights

For the three years ended March 2, 2002

Pier 1 Imports, as one of North America's largest specialty retailers of unique decorative home furnishings, gifts and
related items, achieved record sales of over $1.5 billion and record net income of over $100 million in fiscal 2002. Pier 1
directly imports from over 40 countries around the world, displaying merchandise in a visually appealing setting in stores

throughout the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom and Mexico.

2002 2001 2000
For the year: (8 ine millions except per share amotiis)
NEESAlES . ..ttt $1,548.6 $1,411.5 $1,231.1
Grossprofit . ... ..oveniiiii 649.8 594.5 512.5
Operating eXPenses ..........ovuieunrrrneenrennamsaenniinnnes 490.9 442.9 389.4
Operating iNnCoMe . . ......oiuiiiiiii it 158.8 151.5 123.2
Nonoperating (income) and expenses,net .................... 0.2) 1.3 4.6
Income before incometaxes ...........oovviviiiiniiiaien.. 159.0 150.2 118.6
NELINCOIMIE « .\ tet et et ia e aeeeeaes $ 100.2 $ 947 $ 747
Basic earnings pershare ............ ... $ 106 $ 98 $ .78
Diluted earnings pershare ..............cc.oiiiieiiiieenn.nn $ 104 $ .97 $ .75
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding (millions) ....... 96.2 98.0 103.3
Increase in same-storesales () ...........coooiiiiiiiiiiann 4.5% 7.8% 2.7%

At year-end:
Number of storesworldwide @) ..............ooiiiil 974 899 834
North American retail square feet (millions)@ ................. 6.9 6.2 59

(1) Stares included in the same-store sales calculation are those stores apened prior to the beginning of the preceding fiscal year and that ave still open, including qualifying
relocated stores. For further explanation regarding the calcnlation of same-store sales, see Critical Accounting Policies in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Same-store sales amounis reflect a 52-week comparison for all periods presented. All other fiscal 2001 data inclides 53
weeks of operations. For an explanation regarding the fluctuation in same-store sales increases from year fo year, refer fo Managements Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations for those years.

(2) Worldwide store count at fiscal 2001 year-end includes the acquisition of Cargo Furniture, Inc. on February 21, 2001. Results of operations for fiscal 2001 were not affected
by this acquisition. By fiscal 2002 year-end, all Japan locations had been closed. Results of operations for ail years presented include Japan’s operations.

(3) North American retail square footage includes Pier 1 Imports'locations throughout the United States and Canada, along with Cargo stores.
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Making ourselves at home.

The things that make up a home are simple. Whether they're family,

friends or a favorite chair, they fill empty spaces with warmth and love.
L. -~

When someoné brings home an armoire or rug from one of our stores,

we understand just how big a compliment that is. Invitations home

aren'’t given to casual acquaintances. They're reserved for those you're

" most comfortable with. It’s a statement from our customers that they're

at home with us and we're at home with them.
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Pierimports
] U) Fiscal year 2002 was a unique and exceptional year for Pier 1 Imports. The first

half of the year was difficult, affected by soft economic conditions. Then the events of September 11th changed
our nation forever. During that second half of the year, the influences of “cocooning” took hold in America.
Individuals chose to retreat to the security and comfort of their homes. As a company, we moved ahead with
even more compassion toward our associates, friends, family and customers. Pier 1 Imports has been a known
and trusted brand for 40 years. I believe that we understand the importance of providing customers with value,

quality and style that is found in a friendly and relaxing shopping experience.

We are proud that fiscal year 2002, notwithstanding the difficult first half, was a record year for the Company. Net
income was over $100 million for the first time in Pier 1's history. Sales were $1.55 billion, an increase of 9.7% over
last year’s $1.4 billion. All-important same-store sales grew by 4.5%. Diluted earnings per share for the year was
$1.04 compared to $.97 a year ago. The increases in traffic, transactions and average ticket for the year were sup-
ported by positive customer response to new merchandise assortments during the year and a very successful

advertising campaign.

We continue to strengthen the Company's balance sheet, as evidenced by cash of $235.6 million at the end of
fiscal 2002. Net income plus depreciation was $143 million, and working capital was a source of funds so that
cash generated from operations was $244 million. We repurchased four million shares of the Company's stock
during the year, and the Board of Directors recently authorized up to a total of $150 million of additional
share repurchases. In keeping with our conservative financial strategy, we will continue to be prudent in our

infrastructure investments and in funding the future growth of the Company.

The acceleration of new store growth continued in fiscal 2002, with 104 new Pier 1 stores opening and 20 closing
or relocating to stronger trading areas. This year, fiscal 2003, we plan to open 115 to 120 Pier 1 stores and will
close 30. Our research has identified more than 500 additional potential sites for Pier 1 stores throughout North
America, which we plan to develop over the next eight to ten years. This represents a 65% increase in our current

base of store locations at the end of fiscal 2002.

We ended fiscal 2002 with 910 Pier 1 stores in North America, 16 in Mexico,

7 in Puerto Rico, 23 stores in the United Kingdom operating as “The Pier” and
18 Cargo stores, for a total of 974 stores worldwide. In addition, we are prepared
to begin the Cargo store rollout. During fiscal 2003, we plan to open eight to
twelve new Cargo stores and have aggressive growth plans for over 300 Cargo

stores in North America during the next ten years.

Pier 1 continued its successful national marketing campaign this year with

television and print advertising. We increased the use of direct marketing by

growing our proprietary database to over 7.5 million customers. Special incen-
Sales of our Komen Candle benefit  tives targeted to our most valued customers were used to increase shopping
breast cancer research. . . . .
frequency and average ticket. The Pier 1 preferred card continued to be widely
accepted among our most loyal shoppers. Sales from the preferred card represent 30% of Pier 1 and Cargo's store
sales, and the average amount spent on the card is more than three times that of a typical Pier 1 or Cargo customer.
We continue to see growth from our e-commerce business. Pierl.com has become a valuable source for our cus-
tomers in gaining product information, receiving promotional and sale event notifications, and for finding store

locations throughout North America. Additionally, our e-marketing efforts are beginning to generate very positive




results with the acquisition of more than 250,000 e-mail subscribers. As a whole, these integrated marketing
initiatives have raised brand awareness for our unique selling proposition, ’

resulting in a significant increase in customer traffic in Pier 1 stores.

Our charitable efforts extend internationally from the countries where we
source merchandise, to national causes and local initiatives in our home-
town that our associates and customers believe in and support. This year
our philanthropic work took on a whole new meaning, as our Pier 1 associ-
ates, as well as our customers, reached out with added enthusiasm. Sales
of 2001 UNICEF greeting cards generated almost $2 million, all of which

was donated to help families, and especially children, that needed food,

medicine and supplies in Third-World countries. Pier 1 also was a national - . ' " -
box distributor for “Trick-or-Treat” for UNICEFE, which raised an estimated Our support Jor UNICEF helps

impoverished children and families.
$3.5 million for emergency relief for the children of Afghanistan. In November

2001, we donated an additional $100,000 to UNICEF to help save the lives of Afghan women and children.

Nationally, we also sell a specially designed candle in October, Breast Cancer Awareness Month, to help fund the Susan
G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation. In 2001, our contribution from the sale of these candles to the Komen founda-
tion was over $144,000, which strengthens our belief that our customers share in our passion to help those in need.
This is in addition to sponsoring thousands of Pier 1 associates to participate in Race for the Cure® events across the
U.S. and Canada. In our headquarters city of Fort Worth, Texas, we continued to donate time and gifts to the United

Way, Daggett Elementary (our Adopt-A-School) and other various organizations that support the community.

Since accepting my position as Chairman and CEO in 1998, I have worked very hard to enhance Pier 1's culture
of unquestionable integrity and responsibility, expressed in both written codes and living example. Our retail
i business is simple and straightforward, and so are our financials. Many public companies, including ours, have
I reviewed current board and company policies. Your Board of Directors will continue to oversee the corporate

governance and ethical principles of the Company in order to serve the interests of our shareholders and associates.

Tomorrow’s successful retailers must be customer-centered with a focus on increasing value. Value means not
only price, but quality, selection and an engaging shopping experience. This defines the Pier 1 Imports brand

and is the promise we will keep in satisfying our loyal and

passionate customers. As we reflect on our 40 successful years
in the retail business, I am pleased with our accomplishments ...
but I believe the best is yet to come as we implement plans to
grow in totally new ways and directions. To our customers,
suppliers, associates, Board of Directors and shareholders

who make it all possible: Thank you for your support.

TN
BhApaA

A Marvin }. Girouard

Koo

o Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Coming home to Pier 1 Imports. To an ever-broadening spectrum of
consumers — including baby boomers and Gen-X and -Yers - there’s no
place like home.

A decade ago, business author/trend consultant Faith Popcorn dubbed
this trend cocooning, defined as “the need to protect oneself from the
unpredictable realities of the outside world.” In this scenario, consumer
spending focuses on safety, security ... and comfort.

If there was ever any question about Popcorn’s theory, all doubt seems
to have been erased in the last year, as the “trend” has become a full-
blown cultural phenomenon. Goods and services that responded to this
lifestyle shift have experienced a strong market - a conclusion borne
out by the fact that during the slumping economy in 2001, Pier 1
Imports and other retailers that addressed these needs performed

quite well.

Pier 1's answers to the trend? An ever-changing mix of products that
stimulates the senses, making homes not just warm and inviting, but
also a reflection of individual style. A value proposition that promises a
decorating resource that fits any budget. And refocused store location
metrics that prove while we're already established and well-entrenched,
there’s still plenty of room for growth.

Our marketing campaign also meshes with this stay-at-home trend,
conveying our brand position of casual comfort, style and fun. We have
achieved success through marketing our preferred card, a national TV
campaign, print advertising and database marketing, plus national pro-
grams for interior designers and bridal and gift registries. E-commerce
initiatives are also growing, with online sales and e-mail marketing to a
database that already includes 250,000 subscribers.

The proof of our efforts? Our customers have rewarded us by making
Pier 1 Imports a part of their homes - resulting in record sales of
$1.55 billion during fiscal 2002.

The marketplace has undergone a paradigm shift most evident in the past several months — a shift accelerated by recent economic
events, terrorism and other uncertainties. People seem 1o be looking deeper inside to find what they really value. For Pier 1

this shift places us not just at the right place at the right time ... but the right place for the future as well,
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Well-built, good-looking. She
said it would last. Darrell was
generous in his response,
even understanding. After all,
the cabinet was perfect - like
everything she’d fallen for
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A world of value. The success of the Pier 1 Imports brand is built upon
offering unique and exclusive merchandise at a value. The brand is
known for being casual, eclectic and culturally inspired.

Just as unique as our products are the people behind them. Stocking
America’s best-known chain of imported home fashions is no simple
task - but it is a labor of love. Our merchandising team consists of
some of the most-traveled people on the planet. Our buyers spend
many a week far from home. Expertise and a sense of style are required
to develop and select merchandise that will delight our customers’
demanding tastes. Some items are created with designers abroad,
others with our experienced in-house product development team.

Equally vital to our success is our exceptional network of 600+ suppliers
in 40 countries worldwide. After all, not just any artisan can craft the
captivating beauty of our wicker collections, or create the memorable
fragrances of our popular candles. In many cases, our relationships with
these suppliers have been built over the past 40 years. The longevity of

these relationships helps us deliver consistent quality, value and results.

Of course, styles and trends are a moving target. Our merchandise
assortment remains in a state of perpetual motion, with seasonal transi-
tions that keep our product offerings fresh. As much as 65% of Pier 1's
merchandise changes each year.

A typical Pier 1 store inventory forms multiple tiers. Broad-appeal items
at entry-level price points break the ice with younger customers and
those on a budget. A mid-level assortment of furniture and accessories
includes our best-known products and is at the core of the Pier 1 brand.
And to test new ideas and satisfy the cravings of trendier tastes, we
devote a portion of our assortment to the more fashion-forward. Cash-
and-carry convenience is a key strategy - the merchandise must be on
hand in the store to close the sale when the customer is ready to buy.

Stroll through a Pier 1 store and you'll see a world of craftsmanship on display. Our wicker isn’t produced by machines, bu
by the age-old art of weaving by hand. Many of our dinnerware patterns are original pleces painted by artisans. Delivering one
of-a-kind products of this caliber could mean pricing most customers out of the picture, But our product developrment anc
merchandising teams consider all aspects of design, manufacturing and country of origin for every item we sell. The result i

uncommen craftsmanship and guality at a surprisingly affordable value,







Alothas
changed since
Stan and Linda’s
kids left home.

Family vacations and Saturday

soccer games have been
replaced by a strange quiet in the
house. And the odd group of
chipped plates and bowls that
screamed “tater tot casserole”
has been replaced with a set of
understated, beautiful dinnerware
that whispers, “Maybe this empty
nest isn't so bad, after all.”






Growth in store. Merchandising a store might seem easy when you have
such an exquisite array of countries and cultures on display. The prod-
uct is key, of course, but our team of visual merchandisers continuously
refines our store presentations with meticulous care to create a pleasing
environment that sparks ideas and results in add-on sales.

Pier 1 Imports operates almost 1,000 stores, including the 18-store
Cargo chain, in 48 states, Canada, Mexico, Puerto Rico and the United
Kingdom. The store network is supported by six distribution centers
that provide efficient access to the greatest concentrations of stores and
major ports of entry. Enhanced warehouse management systems enable
smarter inventory control that makes us more responsive to our cus-
tomers and, ultimately, more profitable.

New store growth continues to sustain our momentum. Research has
pointed to a compelling prospect: Thanks to residential development,
as well as economic and demographic factors, markets once thought to
be saturated plus undiscovered new markets are capable of supporting
additional stores - adding sales volume and creating economies of scale
for our distribution and marketing.

The implication is significant, with current projections calling for us to
reach 1,500 Pier 1 stores by the end of the decade. Moving toward that
goal, we added 84 net new stores in fiscal 2002 and project 85 to 90
more in fiscal 2003. Beyond 2003, we hope to average 70 to 80 net new
Pier 1 stores and 15 to 20 new Cargo stores per year through 2010.

An average Pier 1 store is 8,000 to 12,000 square feet and produces
approximately $1.6 million in annual sales. We are testing a new large-
store format for product introductions and for offering merchandise
designed for larger homes. We now have five of these new stores,
which, at 12,000 to 17,000 square feet, are significantly larger than

a typical Pier 1. Located in highly targeted areas, these stores are
producing beyond expected results. An average Cargo store is

4,500 square feet and produces annual sales volume of approxi-
mately $1 million.

Qver the last five years, Pier 1 Imports has enjoyed a compound annual growth rate in sales and diluted earming:
per share of almost 10%. Continued growth potential Is promising, as younger Consumers earm more buying powe

and our store base grows.,

12
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Brad saw the
Va.SG,“ |
said “I

1

It spoke to everything he loves about his wife. Which is S <l

‘why Brad felt compelled to take it home, and Holly felt
compelled to ask what got into Brad. We think it might

have been the unique craftsmanship.

14
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Traditional strengths, uncommon potential. Pier 1 got its start 40 years
ago with one small store in San Mateo, California. During the '60s, it
became a haven for the “flower children” of the baby-boom generation.
We've moved way beyond beads and incense, but some products, like
our famous Papasan chair, still help define us, thanks to their timeless
appeal. It is promising for us to know that we've been embraced by
baby-boomer children, and now their children, too.

Research tells us that these baby boomers have settled down and now
appreciate the fundamental pleasures of family and home life. Gen-Xers
are establishing homes at an earlier age. And college students are taking
dorm décor to a new level - in fact, we've seen a marked increase in
sales to these younger customers.

It's quite simple: We sell home furnishings. Success is predicated on
our ability to source products that people want at prices that will
make Pier 1 profitable. Our steady growth may not have seemed excit-
ing during the days of skyrocketing tech stocks. In retrospect, we're
pleased that our beliefs about the business and our strategies have
been confirmed.

Putting customers first enables us to return value to our shareholders
and employees, and to practice good corporate citizenship. We never
lose sight of what got us where we are and where we want to go.
Outstanding customer service, convenient locations and ever-changing
merchandise at a value are our commitments to our customers.

Pler 1's corporate-giving activities are meant to touch the sensibilities of the customers we serve, Internationally, our suppor
for UNICEF, now 19 vears strong, has raised over $16 million for children's charities. Nationally, sales of our Komen Candle
have raised over $250,000 for breast cancer research since 2000, and nearly 17,000 Pier 1 employees have participated ir
Race for the Cure® events since 1991, And since 1885, in our headguarters city of Fort Worth, Texas, Pler 1 and its

employees have donated over $3.7 million to the United Way of Metropolitan Tarrant County.

16
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the one dorm room
everyone gravitated to
at the end of the day.

Sure, Cindy Parker was poputar, and her roommate was

tolerable. But for most of the girls in ston Hall, it r
was the classic comfort of their rattan furniture that had '

the most appeal.
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Key Financial Statistics

For the five years ended March 2, 2002

Total Sales Net Income Preferred Credit Card Sales
{Dollars in Millions) (Dollars in Millions) {(Dollars in Millions)
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Merchandise Sales Mix
For fiscal year 2002 Seasonal 8%

‘\Housewares 12%

Furniture 39%

" Bed & Bath 18%

Decorative Accessories 23%




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
($ in millions except per share amounts)

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS:

Netsales . ... e
Grossprofit. ...
Selling, general and administrative expenses........
Depreciation and amortization....................
Operatingincome . ...............ooiiiinoo.e
Nonoperating (income) and expenses, net@........
Income before income taxes ......................
Netincome............. i iiterriniiiiiaannn.

PER SHARE AMOUNTS

(ADJUSTED FOR STOCK SPLITS AND DIVIDENDS):
Basicearnings ........... ... i
Diluted earnings ...........ovvviiiiiiiieeie..
Cash dividends declared. .........................
Shareholders’ equity ............. ... ... ...

OTHER FINANCIAL DATA:

Working capital ) ...
Currentratio@). . ...
Total @SSetS . ... vvi et
Long-termdebt@) .............. . ool
Shareholders’ equity ..ot
Weighted average diluted shares

outstanding (millions). . ............ ... ...
Effective taxrate ........... . o i
Return on average shareholders’ equity. ............
Return on average total assets.....................
Pre-taxreturnonsales ........ .. ..o

4-Year
Compound
Annual Year Ended
Growth Rate 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

9.5% $ 1,548.6 1,411.5 1,231.1 1,138.6 1,075.4
8.9% $ 649.8 594.5 512.5 500.4 461.5
9.1% $  448.1 399.8 349.4 334.6 315.8
15.7% $ 42.8 43.2 40.0 31.1 23.9
6.9% $ 158.8 151.5 123.2 134.7 121.7
$ (0.2) 1.3 4.6 5.0 (2.3)
6.4% $ 159.0 150.2 118.6 129.6 124.0
6.5% $ 100.2 94.7 74.7 80.4 78.0
8.3% $ 1.06 .98 .78 .82 37
9.6% $ 1.04 97 75 77 72
15.5% $ .16 15 12 12 .09
12.4% $ 6.20 5.52 4.60 4.12 3.89
9.0% $ 3968 333.0 2393 252.1 280.8
(3.2%) 2.9 3.3 24 2.9 3.3
7.2% $ 8627 735.7 670.7 654.0 653.4
(31.4%) $ 254 25.0 25.0 96.0 114.9
10.5% $ 5857 531.9 440.7 403.9 392.7
96.2 98.0 103.3 108.9 112.9
37.0% 37.0 37.0 38.0 37.1
17.9% 19.5 17.7 20.2 21.8
12.5% 13.5 11.3 12.3 12.8
10.3% 10.6 9.6 11.4 11.5

(1) Fiscal 2001 consisted of a 53-week year. All other fiscal years presented reflect 52-week years.
(2) Nonoperating (income) and expenses, net, were comprised of interest expense and interest and investment income in each fiscal year presented, and in addition,
included net recoveries associated with trading activities in fiscal 1998.

(3) The reduction in fiscal 2000 werking capital, current ratio and long-term debt was the result of the Company’s call of its outstanding 5%:% convertible
subordinated notes. The notes were primarily converted into shares of the Company’s common stock in March 2000. Excluding the reclassification of the

5%:% notes from long-term to short-term, working capital would have been $278.5 million with a current ratio of 3.0 to 1 at fiscal 2000 year-end.

21




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Pier 1 Imports, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the
“Company”) is one of North America’s largest specialty
retailers of unique decorative home furnishings, gifts and
related items, with over 950 stores in 48 states, Canada,
Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom and Mexico as of fiscal
2002 year-end. The Company directly imports merchandise
from over 40 countries around the world and designs
offerings that are proprietary to Pier 1 Imports. During fiscal
2002, the Company reported record sales of $1,548.6 million
and record net income of $100.2 million, or $1.04 per diluted
share. In February 2001, the Company acquired certain

year, the Company began to see improvements in customer
traffic, average ticket and customer conversion in the third
quarter. These sales trends began after the events of
September 11th when consumers shifted their spending
away from travel and entertainment and began making
purchases for their homes. In addition to this change in
consumer behavior, the Company believes that its value-
oriented merchandising efforts and the success of its
marketing campaign contributed to the sales increases

experienced during fiscal 2002.

The Company'’s accelerated new store growth plans in North

assets and assumed certain liabilities of Cargo Furniture, . ]

. America also contributed to sales growth during fiscal 2002.
Inc. and formed New Cargo Furniture, Inc. (“Cargo”). Cargo, .
) . ; The Company opened 104 and closed 20 North American
an 18-store retailer and wholesaler of casual lifestyle furni- ) .

) 3 . Pier 1 stores during the fiscal year. The North American
ture, gifts and home décor, had no impact on the Company's )
. L o Pier 1 store count totaled 910 at the end of fiscal 2002
fiscal 2001 operations due to the timing of the acquisition, .
. i compared to 826 a year ago. Including Cargo and all other
but is reflected in the Company'’s fiscal 2002 and 2001 year- . .
worldwide locations, the Company'’s store count totaled

974 at the end of fiscal year 2002 compared to 899 at the
end of fiscal year 2001. Prior to the close of fiscal year 2002,

end balance sheets and fiscal 2002 results of operations.

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 2, 2002
AND MARCH 3, 2001 the franchise agreement with Akatsuki Printing Co., Ltd.
During the 52-week period of fiscal 2002, net sales increased
$137.1 million, or 9.7%, to $1,548.6 million. Net sales for the

53-week period of fiscal 2001 were $1,411.5 million. Same-

and Skylark Co., Ltd. expired without any additional costs
or further obligations to the Company. As a result, the
Company no longer has stores in Japan.

store sales for fiscal 2002 improved 4.5% over the prior year,
A summary reconciliation of the Company's stores open at

excluding the 53rd week of sales in fiscal 2001. Despite a
the beginning of fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 to the number

slow start in sales growth during the first half of the fiscal
open at the end of each period follows:

Pier 1
North American  International (1) Cargo @ Total
OpenatFebruary 27,1999 .. ....ooii i e 752 54 - 806
OPeIHNES (3) « e v ettt et e e 63 5 - 68
ClOSINES (3) « -ttt ettt e e e e (30) (10) - (40)
Openat February 26,2000 . ........c00iiiineriiiinaeieanneraaain. 785 49 - 834
OPeIUNGS (3) «. ittt e 65 3 - 68
ClOSINGS (3) + 1ottt ittt et (24) - - (24)
Acquisition (February2001) ...t - - 21 21
OpenatMarch3,2001 ... ... i e 826 52 21 899
OPEIUNES (3) .+ttt ittt e e 104 3 3 110
ClOSINES (3) 1t vttt e (20) 9) 6) (35)
OpenatMarch2,2002 .........ooiiiiiiiiiie i 910 46 18 974

(1) International stores were located in Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom, Mexico and Japan for fiscal 2000 and 2001. All Japan locations were closed by fiscal 2002
year-end.

(2) The Company’s results of operations for fiscal 2001 were not affected by the acquisition of Cargo.

(3) Openings and closings include stores which were relocated.




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

{continued)

Sales on the Company’s proprietary credit card for fiscal
2002 were $412.5 million compared to $377.0 million last
year and accounted for 28.9% of U.S. store sales for both
fiscal periods. Proprietary credit card customers spent an
average of $153 per transaction, which was comparable to
last year. The Company continues to encourage sales on
its proprietary credit card by opening new accounts,
including accounts on Cargo’s new proprietary credit
card, and developing customer loyalty through marketing
promotions specifically targeted to cardholders, including
deferred payment options on larger purchases. Although
the proprietary credit card generates income, it primarily
serves as a marketing and communication tool for the

Company’s most loyal customers.

Gross profit, after related buying and store occupancy costs,
expressed as a percentage of sales, was 42.0% for fiscal 2002
compared to 42.1% a year ago. Merchandise margins for
fiscal year 2002 remained unchanged at 54.2% of sales when
compared to last fiscal year. Although the first half of fiscal
2002 was more promotional as a result of soft economic
conditions, the second half of fiscal 2002 yielded sales with
a more favorable blend of regular-priced merchandise and
promotional items and merchandise margins rebounded
accordingly. Store occupancy costs were 12.3% of sales

in fiscal 2002 versus 12.1% of sales last fiscal year. This
increase was primarily attributable to the effect of leveraging
occupancy costs over an additional week of sales in fiscal
year 2001 versus fiscal year 2002. This increase was also

the result of additional store rental expense due to the sale
and subsequent leaseback of six store properties previously
owned by the Company. These sale-leaseback transactions
also resulted, although to a lesser extent, in a reduction of
depreciation expense, which is not classified as a component

of store occupancy costs.

As a percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative
expenses, including marketing, increased 60 basis points to
28.9% of sales for fiscal year 2002 from 28.3% of sales a year
ago. Expenses that normally increase proportionately with
sales and number of stores, such as store payroll, equipment
rental, supplies and marketing expenses, were well
controlled and declined 50 basis points to 19.7% of sales.
Store payroll decreased 20 basis points as a percentage of

sales, which was largely the result of a decrease in store

bonuses that are awarded based on sales gains over the prior
year. Marketing as a percentage of sales decreased 10 basis
points, to 4.5% of sales, due to lower television advertising
rates negotiated by the Company. All other selling, general
and administrative expenses increased 110 basis points

t0 9.3% of sales for the fiscal year. These increases were
largely the result of increases in non-store payroll, medical,
workers’ compensation, and general insurance expenses,
and the impact of Cargo’s expenditures this year with no
corresponding expense last year. The increases in non-store
payroll resulted primarily from an enhancement to the field
management structure in the first quarter of fiscal 2002 to
provide for future growth.

Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal 2002 was
$42.8 million, or 2.8% of sales, compared to $43.2 million,
or 3.1% of sales, last fiscal year. The decrease was primarily
the result of store point of sale equipment, which became
fully depreciated in March 2001, along with the sale of eight
store properties previously owned, six of which were subse-

quently leased back by the Company.

Operating income improved to $158.8 million, or 10.3% of
sales, in fiscal 2002 from $151.5 million, or 10.7% of sales,

Jin fiscal 2001.

Interest income increased $0.6 million, or 10 basis points
as a percentage of sales, to $2.5 million due to considerably
higher average cash and investment balances during the
current fiscal year compared to last fiscal year, partially
offset by a decrease in interest rates. Interest expense was
$2.3 million in fiscal year 2002 compared to $3.1 million

in fiscal year 2001, a 10 basis point reduction. The decline
in interest expense was due to lower average interest rates
on a relatively fixed long-term debt balance along with no
borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility
during fiscal 2002 compared to several months of outstanding

balances on the revolver during fiscal 2001.

The Company's effective tax rate remained constant at 37%

of income before income taxes for both fiscal 2002 and 2001.

Fiscal 2002 net income totaled $100.2 million, representing
6.5% of sales, or $1.04 per share on a diluted basis. In fiscal
2001, net income was 6.7% of sales and totaled $94.7 million,

or $.97 per share on a diluted basis.
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FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 3, 2001
AND FEBRUARY 26, 2000

During fiscal 2001, the Company recorded net sales of
$1,411.5 million, an increase of $180.4 million, or 14.7%,
over net sales of $1,231.1 million for the prior fiscal year.
Fiscal 2001 consisted of a 53-week year, while fiscal 2000
and 1999 were 52-week years. Same-store sales for fiscal
2001 improved 7.8%, excluding the 53rd week of sales.

The Company believes that its new advertising campaign,
proprietary credit card and other promotions, and continued
focus on a value pricing initiative, which began in fiscal
2000, resulted in higher customer traffic, average purchases
per customer and conversion ratios during fiscal 2001.

OpenatFebruary28,1998..........coiiiiiiiii i
10]615 011014 ) N
ClOSINES (3) « v vt e ettt et e

OpenatFebruary 27,1999 ... ..ot
OPENINGS (3) .ottt e
ClOSINES (3) ot e v et e

Open at February26,2000...................... S
OPEIINES (3) .+ v ttit ittt
ClOSINES (3) .+ -t v eeeei et
Acquisition (February2001) ..o,

OpenatMarch3,2001 ............. i

(1) International stores were located in Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom, Mexico and Japan.

The Company’s continued efforts to expand by opening new
stores also contributed to sales growth during fiscal 2001.
The Company opened 65 new stores and closed 24 stores
in North America during fiscal 2001, bringing the Pier 1
North American store count up to 826 at year-end. With
the addition of Cargo, the store count worldwide, including
North America, Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom, Mexico
and Japan, totaled 899 at the end of fiscal 2001 compared
to 834 at the end of fiscal 2000. A summary reconciliation
of the Company’s stores open at the beginning of fiscal
2001, 2000 and 1999 to the number open at the end of each
period follows:

ier 1
Nort}? frrnerican International @) Cargo 2) Total
719 45 - 764
63 11 - 74
(30) 2 - (32)
752 54 - 806
63 5 - 68
30) (10) - {40)
785 49 - 834
65 3 - 68
(24) - - (24)
- - 21 21
826 52 21 899

(2) The Company'’s results of operations for fiscal 2001 were not affected by the acquisition of Cargo.

(3) Openings and closings include stores which were relocated.
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Increased use of the Company's proprietary credit card
added to the Company’s sales growth during fiscal 2001.
Sales on the proprietary credit card were $377.0 million and
accounted for 28.9% of U.S. store sales during fiscal 2001,
an increase of $76.5 million over proprietary credit card sales
in the prior year of $300.5 million, which represented 26.3%
of U.S. store sales during that year. Proprietary credit card
customers spent an average of $152 per transaction in
fiscal 2001 compared to $142 per transaction in fiscal 2000.
The Company attributed the growth in sales on the card

to continued efforts to open new accounts, deferred
payment options offered to cardholders during furniture
promotions, and enhanced customer loyalty through
targeted promotions.

Gross profit, after related buying and store occupancy

costs, expressed as a percentage of sales, increased 50 basis
points in fiscal 2001 to 42.1% from 41.6% in fiscal 2000.
Merchandise margins, as a percentage of sales, declined
from 54.6% in fiscal 2000 to 54.2% in fiscal 2001, a

decrease of 40 basis points. The decrease was a result

of management’s concerted decision to continue to give
value back to customers by offering unique merchandise at
affordable prices. In addition, the effect of a full year of price
reductions taken as a result of the value pricing initiative
started in May 1999 which continued throughout fiscal 2000
created downward pressure on fiscal 2001 merchandise
margins. This decline was also due in part to higher freight
rates during the first half of fiscal 2001 as compared to the
same period in fiscal 2000. The decreases in merchandise
margins were more than offset by the leveraging of relatively
fixed rental costs over a higher sales base, which included an
additional week of sales in fiscal 2001. Store occupancy costs
improved 90 basis points as a percentage of sales from 13.0%
in fiscal 2000 to 12.1% in fiscal 2001.

As a percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative
expenses, including marketing, improved 10 basis points to
28.3% in fiscal 2001 from 28.4% in fiscal 2000. In total dollars,
selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2001

increased $50.4 million over the prior fiscal year. Expenses
that normally increase proportionately with sales and
number of stores, such as marketing, store payroll, supplies
and equipment rental, increased by $34.3 million, but as a
percentage of sales declined nearly 20 basis points to 20.2%
this fiscal year. Marketing as a percentage of sales decreased
20 basis points as a result of reduced spending on newspaper
and magazine advertisements, along with leveraging
marketing expenditures over a higher sales base. As a
percentage of sales, the decrease in marketing expenses
was offset by a 10 basis point increase in store payroll when
comparing the two fiscal years. This increase was largely
attributable to store bonuses awarded based on sales gains.
All other selling, general and administrative expenses
increased by $16.0 million, and increased 10 basis points

as a percentage of sales. This increase was primarily due

to an increase in information technology and other non-
store salaries, partially offset by effective management of
other administrative expenses and a reduction in net

credit card costs.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $3.2 million

to $43.2 million in fiscal 2001 primarily because of the
Company’s increased capital expenditures throughout

fiscal 2001 and 2000, especially expenditures on technology-
related assets which tend to have relatively short useful lives.

In fiscal 2001, operating income for the year improved
to $151.5 million or 10.7% of sales, from $123.2 million
or 10.0% of sales in fiscal 2000, an increase of 23.0% or
$28.3 million.

Interest income decreased slightly to $1.9 million in fiscal
2001 from $2.3 million in fiscal 2000 due to lower average
cash balances during the current fiscal year. Interest expense
was $3.1 million in fiscal 2001 compared to $6.9 million in
fiscal 2000, a decline of $3.8 million. The decrease in interest
expense was primarily due to the repurchase of $28.6 million
of the Company's 53:% convertible subordinated notes during
fiscal 2000 and the retirement of the remaining $39.2 million
of these notes during the first quarter of fiscal 2001. See Note

5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Company's effective tax rate remained constant at 37%
of income before income taxes for both fiscal 2001 and 2000.

Net income in fiscal 2001 was $94.7 million, aor $.97 per share
on a diluted basis, an increase of $20.0 million, or 26.7%, as
compared to fiscal 2000’s net income of $74.7 million, or
$.75 per share on a diluted basis. Net income, as a percentage
of sales, improved from 6.1% in fiscal 2000 to 6.7% in

fiscal 2001.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company ended fiscal year 2002 with $235.6 million
of cash compared to $46.8 million a year ago. Total cash
generated from operations was $244.3 million compared to
$107.5 million last year. Net income, adjusted for non-cash
and non-operating related items, was $147.0 million and
served as the Company's primary source of operating cash
for the fiscal year. The Company’s reduction in inventory
levels provided cash of $34.8 million compared to a use of
cash in the prior fiscal year of $39.1 million. The Company’s
ability to better manage inventory levels resulted in higher
inventory turns and lower overall inventories this year
compared to last year, with only a slight decline in average
inventory per store. After a successful January clearance
event, inventory levels were well positioned at the end of
fiscal 2002, enabling a smooth transition into the spring
selling season. Increases in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities provided cash of $66.0 million. These increases
were primarily the result of an increase in merchandise-
related accounts payable, increased sales of the Company'’s
gift cards and increases in federal and state income

taxes payable resulting from a change in the timing of

tax payments.

During fiscal 2002, the Company spent a net of $10.5 million
on investing activities. Capital expenditures were $57.9 million,
a majority of which was used for new and existing store
development and investments in the Company's information
systems. The Company opened a record 104 new Pier 1
stores in North America, as well as three international stores,

and relocated three existing Cargo stores, which together

accounted for $27.9 million of the total amount expended
for capital purchases. The Company remodeled five stores
in fiscal 2002 at a cost of $5.1 million. Continuing with its
commitment to invest in current store locations, the
Company spent an additional $4.5 million to improve floor
plans and upgrade fixtures on existing stores. The Company
also spent $16.7 million on computer software and other
system enhancements, including a new financial system,
warehouse management system and customer relations
management system. Proceeds from disposition of properties
totaled $16.7 million, which included $12.6 million in
proceeds from the sale-leaseback of six Company-owned
properties throughout fiscal 2002. See Note 9 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion
of the sale-leaseback transactions.

As of March 2, 2002, the Comparny’s beneficial interest in
securitized receivables decreased $30.8 million from the
balance at fiscal 2001 year-end. During the third quarter

of fiscal 2002, the Company completed a new credit card
securitization transaction through the Pier 1 Imports Credit
Card Master Trust (the “Master Trust”). The Master Trust

is not consolidated by the Company as it is a qualifying
special-purpose entity under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140, “Accounting

for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.” The Master Trust issued
$100 million in trust certificates to a third party, which bear
interest at a floating rate equal to the rate on commercial
paper issued by the third party. As of the end of fiscal year
2002, this rate was 1.81%. In conjunction with this transaction,
the Master Trust retired $50 million in previously issued
certificates, which bore interest at a fixed rate of 6.74% and
were scheduled to mature in May 2002. After the retirement
of these certificates, the new transaction provided the
Company with net proceeds of approximately $49 million.
The sale of the additional $50 million of retained interest
contributed to this decrease in beneficial interest in
securitized receivables, but was partially offset by increases

subsequent to the sale of the retained interest due to
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increased sales on the Company's proprietary credit card.
The Company has continued to experience payment rates
comparable to last fiscal year on its proprietary credit
card receivables. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements.

During fiscal 2002, the Company paid $44.1 million to
repurchase 4,020,500 common shares under the Board of
Directors-approved stock buyback program at an average
price of $10.98, including fees. Subsequent to the end of
fiscal 2002, the Company announced that its Board of
Directors authorized share repurchases of up to $150 million
of the Company’s common stock. This authorization
replaced the previously authorized 2.8 million shares that
were remaining for repurchase at the end of fiscal 2002.
These repurchases will be made in open market or private
transactions over the next two to three years depending on
prevailing market conditions, the Company’s available cash,
loan covenant restrictions and consideration of its corporate
credit ratings. During the year, the Company continued to
pay dividends and $15.1 million of cash was expended for
dividend payments during fiscal 2002. Also, subsequent

to the end of the fiscal year, the Company declared an
increased quarterly cash dividend of $.05 per share payable
on May 22, 2002 to shareholders of record on May 8, 2002.
The Company expects to continue to pay cash dividends

in fiscal 2003, but to retain most of its future earnings for
expansion of the Company's business. Other financing
activities, primarily the exercise of stock options, provided
cash of $14.2 million during fiscal 2002.

At fiscal 2002 year-end, the Company’s sources of working
capital were cash flow from operations, sales of proprietary
credit card receivables and bank lines of credit. The bank
facilities include a $125 million credit facility, which
expires in November 2003, all of which was available at
fiscal 2002 year-end. The Company had no borrowings on
this facility during fiscal 2002. Additionally, the Company has
a $120 million short-term line of credit, which is primarily
used to issue merchandise letters of credit. At fiscal 2002
year-end, approximately $64.6 million had been utilized,
leaving $55.4 million available. The Company also has

$28.7 million in credit lines used to issue other special-

purpose letters of credit, all of which were fully utilized

at fiscal 2002 year-end. Of the $28.7 million in special-
purpose letters of credit, $25.6 million related to the
Company'’s industrial revenue bonds. See Note 5 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Most of the
Company’s loan agreements require the Company to main-
tain certain financial ratios and limit certain investments
and distributions to shareholders, including cash dividends
and repurchases of common stock. The Company’s current
ratio was 2.9 to 1 at fiscal 2002 year-end compared to 3.3

to 1 at fiscal 2001 year-end.

A summary of the Company’s other commercial commitments
as of March 2, 2002 is listed below (in thousands):

Amount of Commitment
Expiration per Period
Total Amounts  Less Than 1to3
Committed 1 Year Years
Merchandise letters
ofcredit . .......... $ 64,640 $ 64,640 $ -
Standby letters
ofcredit ........... 28,740 3,175 25,565
Total other
commercial
commitments . .... $ 93,380 $ 67,815 $ 25,565

A summary of the Company’s contractual cash commitments
as of March 2, 2002 is listed below (in thousands):

Long-term Operating

Fiscal Year Debt Leases
2003 ..o $ 356 $ 162,315
2004 ... 356 158,525
2005 ... - 145,608
2006, ... - 132,855
2007 oo - 118,102
Thereafter ................... 25,000 426,946
Total contractual

cash commitments ........ $ 25,712 $ 1,144,351

The present value of total existing minimum operating lease
commitments discounted at 10% was $751.9 million at fiscal
2002 year-end. The Company plans to continue to fund

these commitments from operating cash flow.
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The Company'’s securitization transaction accounts for a
significant source of its funding, with a face amount of
outstanding debt securities (the Class A Certificates)
assumed by third parties of $100 million. The Company does
not provide recourse to third-party investors that purchase
the debt securities issued by the Master Trust. However,
should the performance of the underlying credit card
receivables held by the Master Trust deteriorate to a level
that the Company’s retained subordinated interests were
insufficient to collateralize the Class A Certificates, the
Master Trust would be contractually required to begin
repayment of the Class A Certificates, thereby limiting the
amount of receivables that could be sold to the Master

Trust and limiting the securitization as a source of funding.
However, this repayment would only be required to the
extent that the Master Trust was out of compliance with its
required performance measures. The performance measures
that could trigger this repayment, such as payment rate,
returns and fraud, portfolio yield and minimum transferor’s
interest, would have to decline significantly to result in such
an early amortization event. In addition, if the Company
was required to consolidate the Master Trust due to a change
in accounting rules, the Company’s operations for fiscal
2002 would not have been materially different than its
reported results and both its assets and liabilities would have
increased by approximately $100 million as of March 2, 2002.

The Company plans to open approximately 115 to 120

new Pier 1 stores during fiscal year 2003 and plans to close
approximately 30 stores as their leases expire or otherwise
end. A majority of the store closings are planned relocations
within the same markets. In addition, the Company will
begin its expansion plans for Cargo and will open eight to
ten locations during fiscal 2003. New store buildings and
land will be financed primarily through operating leases.
Total capital expenditures for fiscal 2003 are expected to

be approximately $85 million. Of this amount, the Company
expects to spend approximately $43 million on store
development, $15 million on the replacement of its
Savannah distribution facility, net of estimated proceeds
from the disposal of the current facility, $15 million on
information systems and $12 million on the land and

other costs related to construction of the Company’s new

headquarters.

In summary, the Company’s primary uses of cash in fiscal
2002 were to fund operating expenses, provide for new and
existing store development and repurchase common stock
of the Company. Historically, the Company has financed

its operations primarily from internally generated funds
and borrowings under the Company’s credit facilities. The
Company believes that the funds provided from operations,
available lines of credit and sales of its proprietary credit
card receivables will be sufficient to finance working capital
and capital expenditure requirements throughout fiscal
year 2003.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires the use of
estimates that affect the reported value of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. These estimates are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for the Company’s
conclusions. The Company continually evaluates the
information used to make these estimates as the business
and the economic environment changes. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. The use of estimates is pervasive throughout the
consolidated financial statements, but the accounting policies

and estimates considered most critical are as follows:
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Beneficial interest in securitized receivables - In February
1997, the Company sold all of its proprietary credit card
receivables to a special-purpose wholly-owned subsidiary,
Pier 1 Funding, Inc., predecessor to Pier 1 Funding, LLC
(“Funding”), which transferred the receivables to the Pier 1
Imports Credit Card Master Trust (the “Master Trust”). The
Master Trust is not consolidated by the Company as it meets
the requirements of a qualifying special-purpose entity under
SFAS No. 140. The Master Trust issues beneficial interests
that represent undivided interests in the assets of the
Master Trust consisting of the transferred receivables and

all cash flows from collections of such receivables. The
beneficial interests include certain interests retained by
Funding, which are represented by Class B Certificates, and
the residual interest in the Master Trust (the excess of the
principal amount of receivables held in the Master Trust over
the portion represented by the certificates sold to investors
and the Class B Certificates). Gain or loss on the sale of
receivables depends in part on the previous carrying amount
of the financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated
between the assets sold and the retained interests based on
their relative fair value at the date of transfer. The beneficial
interest in the Master Trust is accounted for as an available-
for-sale security. The Company estimates the fair value of
its beneficial interest in the Master Trust, both upon initial
securitization and thereafter, based on the present value of
future expected cash flows estimated using management's
best estimates of key assumptions including credit losses
and timeliness of payments. Although not anticipated by
the Company, a significant deterioration in the financial
condition of the Company’s credit card holders, interest
rates, or other economic conditions could result in other
than temporary losses on the beneficial interest in

future periods.

Inventories - The Company’s inventory is comprised of
finished merchandise and is stated at the lower of average

cost or market; cost is determined on a weighted average

method. Calculations of the carrying value of inventory are
made on an item-by-item basis. The Company reviews its
inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving merchan-
dise and uses merchandise markdowns to clear such
merchandise. Reserves are established to reduce the value
of such slow-moving merchandise. The Company records
inventory shrink expense based upon known inventory

losses plus unknown losses estimated by reviewing

historical experience of the results of its physical inventories.

Although inventory shrink rates have not fluctuated

significantly in recent years, should actual inventory shrink
rates differ from the Company’s estimates, revisions to the
inventory shrink expense may be required. Most inventory

purchases and commitments are made in U.S. dollars.

Income taxes - The Company records income tax expense
using the liability method for taxes. The Company is subject
to income tax in many jurisdictions, including the United
States, various states and localities, and foreign countries.
The process of determining tax expense by jurisdiction
involves the calculation of actual current tax expense,
together with the assessment of deferred tax expense
resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and finan-
cial accounting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 23, deferred federal income taxes, net of
applicable foreign tax credits, are not provided on the
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries to the extent
the Company intends to permanently reinvest such
earnings abroad. The Company intends these earnings to
be indefinitely reinvested in international operations. If
future events require that certain assets associated with
these earnings be repatriated to the United States, an
additional tax provision will be required. Determination

of the amount of additional taxes that would be payable

if such earnings were not considered indefinitely reinvested
is not practical due to the complexities in tax laws and the

assumptions that would have to be made.
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Revenue recognition - The Company recognizes revenue
upon customer receipt or delivery for retail sales, including
sales under deferred payment promotions on its proprie-
tary credit card. Credit card receivable deferrals are for
approximately 90 days and have historically resulted in
no significant increases in bad debt losses arising from
such receivables. Revenue from gift cards, gift certificates
and merchandise credits is deferred until redemption.
The Company records an allowance for estimated
merchandise returns based on historical experience and
other known factors. Should actual returns differ from the
Company’s estimates and current provision for merchan-
dise returns, revisions to the estimated merchandise

returns may be required.

Same-store sales - Stores included in the same-store sales
calculation are those stores opened prior to the beginning
of the preceding fiscal year and that are still open. Also
included are stores that are relocated during the year within
a specified distance serving the same market, where there

is not a significant change in store size and whe‘re there is
not a significant overlap between the opening of one store
and the closing of the existing store. Stores that are expanded
or renovated are excluded from the same-store sales
calculation during the period they are closed for such
remodeling. When these stores re-open for business, they
are included in the same-store sales calculation in the first
full month after the re-opening if there is no significant
change in store size. If there is a significant change in store
size, the store continues to be excluded from the calculation
until it meets the Company's established definition of a
same-store. Sales over the internet are included, but
clearance stores are omitted from the same-store sales
calculation. Also, Cargo was not included in the operations
of the Company for fiscal 2001 and was not included in the
same-store sales calculation for fiscal 2002.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURES

Market risks relating to the Company'’s operations result
primarily from changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. The Company has only limited involvement
with derivative financial instruments, does not use them
for trading purposes and is not a party to any leveraged

derivatives.

The Company periodically enters into forward foreign
currency exchange contracts to hedge some of its foreign
currency exposure. The Company uses such contracts to
hedge exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, primarily the EMU euro and British pounds, associated
with purchases denominated in foreign currencies. The
Company also uses contracts to hedge its exposure associated
with repatriation of funds from its Canadian operations.
Changes in the fair value of the derivatives are included

in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
Forward contracts, which hedge merchandise purchases,
generally have maturities not exceeding six months, and
contracts which hedge the repatriation of Canadian funds
have maturities not exceeding eighteen months. At March 2,
2002, the notional amount of the Company’s forward foreign
currency exchange contracts and contracts to hedge its
exposure associated with repatriation of Canadian funds

totaled approximately $3.9 and $12.2 million, respectively.

The Company manages its exposure to changes in interest
rates by optimizing the use of variable and fixed rate debt.
The Company had $25.0 million of variable rate borrowings
at March 2, 2002. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in
interest rates would have a negligible impact on the
Company’s earnings and cash flows.

Collectively, the Company’s exposure to these market risk
factors was not significant and did not materially change
from March 3, 2001.
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IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

Inflation has not had a significant impact on the operations
of the Company during the preceding three years.

IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” which was amended by SFAS No. 137
and SFAS No. 138. This statement establishes accounting
and reporting guidelines for derivatives and requires the
Company to record all derivatives as assets or liabilities
on the balance sheet at fair value. The Company’s use of
derivatives is primarily limited to forward foreign currency
exchange contracts, which the Company uses to mitigate
exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
The Company also uses contracts which hedge the
repatriation of Canadian funds. Upon adoption of

SFAS No. 133, the Company did not designate such

~ derivatives as hedging instruments; thus, the changes in
the fair value of the derivatives have been included in the
consolidated statements of operations. Prior to adoption,
the Company deferred all gains and losses on its derivative
contracts and recognized such gains and losses as an
adjustment to the transaction price. The adoption of
SFAS No. 133 has not had a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets or its statements
of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 140, “Accounting

for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities,” in the first quarter of fiscal
2002. This statement established new conditions for a
securitization to be accounted for as a sale of receivables,
changed the requirements for an entity to be a qualifying
special-purpose entity, and modified the conditions for
determining whether a transferor has relinquished control
over transferred assets. SFAS No. 140 also requires addi-
tional disclosures related to securitized financial assets

and retained interests in securitized financial assets.

See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Prior to adoption, the Company made the necessary
amendments to its securitization agreements and continues
to receive sale treatment for its securitized proprietary credit
card receivables. The implementation of SFAS No. 140 did
not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’

equity and cash flows.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
which supersedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business
Combinations,” and SFAS No. 38, “Accounting for
Preacquisition Contingencies of Purchased Enterprises.”
Statement No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations and
requires all such transactions to be accounted for

under the purchase method. This statement also addresses
the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and
other intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and is effective for all business combinations initiated
after June 30, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolidated bal-
ance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’

equity and cash flows.

In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” which supersedes APB Opinion
No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” This statement addresses the
initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets
acquired outside of a business combination and the
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
subsequent to their acquisition. SFAS No. 142 also provides
that intangible assets with finite useful lives be amortized
and that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives
will not be amortized, but will rather be tested on an annual
basis for impairment. The Company is required to adopt
SFAS No. 142 for its fiscal year beginning March 3, 2002.

The Company has analyzed the implementation requirements
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and does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 142
will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’

equity and cash flows.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which
replaces SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of.” Statement No. 144 retains the fundamental provisions of
SFAS No. 121 with additional guidance on estimating cash
flows when performing a recoverability test, requires that

a long-lived asset to be disposed of, other than by sale, be
classified as “held and used” until it is disposed of, and
establishes more restrictive criteria to classify an asset as
“held for sale.” SFAS No. 144 also supersedes APB Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations - Reporting

the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions” regarding the disposal of a segment of a
business and would extend the reporting of a discontinued
operation to a “component of an entity” and requires the
operating losses thereon to be recognized in the period in
which they occur. The Company is required to adopt SFAS
No. 144 for its fiscal year beginning March 3, 2002. The
Company has analyzed the implementation requirements
and does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 144
will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’
equity and cash flows.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters discussed in this annual report, other than
historical information, may constitute “forward-looking
statements” that are subject to certain risks and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those

described in the forward-looking statements. The Company
may also make forward-looking statements in other reports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and in
material delivered to the Company’s shareholders. Forward-
looking statements provide current expectations of future
events based on certain assumptions. These statements
encompass information that does not directly relate to

any historical or current fact and often may be identified

Y

with words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,”

” o

“estimates,” “intends,

»u "o

plans,” “projects” and other similar
expressions. Management'’s expectations and assumptions
regarding planned store openings, financing of Company
obligations from operations and other future results are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated
results or other expectations expressed in the forward-
looking statements. Risks and uncertainties that may affect
Company operations and performance include, among
others, the effects of terrorist attacks or other acts of war,
weather conditions that may affect sales, the general
strength of the economy and levels of consumer spending,
the availability of new sites for expansion along with
sufficient labor to facilitate growth, the strength of new
home construction and sales of existing homes, the ability of
the Company to import merchandise from foreign countries
without significantly restrictive tariffs, duties or quotas and
the ability of the Company to ship items from foreign
countries at reasonable rates in timely fashion. The
foregoing risks and uncertainties are in addition to others
discussed elsewhere in this annual report. The Company
assumes no obligation to update or otherwise revise its
forward-looking statements even if experience or future
changes make it clear that any projected results expressed

or implied will not be realized.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors of Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pier 1 Imports, Inc. as of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
March 2, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Pier 1 Imports, Inc. at March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 2, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Eanet ¥ LLP

Fort Worth, Texas
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT April 8, 2002

To our shareholders:

Management is responsible for the preparation and the integrity of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related
notes, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include
amounts based upon our estimates and judgments, as required. The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, independent certified public accountants. The accompanying independent auditors’ report expresses an independent pro-

fessional opinion on the fairness of presentation of management’s financial statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal controls over financial reporting. We believe this system provides reasonable assurance
that transactions are executed in accordance with management authorization and that such transactions are properly recorded and
reported in the financial statements, that assets are properly safeguarded and accounted for, and that records are maintained so as to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
Company also has instituted policies and guidelines, which require employees to maintain a high level of ethical standards.

In addition, the Board of Directors exercises its oversight role with respect to the Company's internal control systems primarily through
its Audit Committee. The Audit Committee consists solely of outside directors and meets periodically with management, the
Company’s internal auditors and the Company’s independent auditors to review internal accounting controls, audit results, financial
reporting, and accounting principles and practices. The Company’s independent and internal auditors have full and free access to the
Audit Committee with and without management’s presence. Although no cost-effective internal control system will preclude all errors

and irregularities, we believe our controls as of and for the year ended March 2, 2002 provide reasonable assurance that the consoli-

oy o OLL ¥ 7=

dated financial statements are reliable.

Marvin J. Girouard Charles H. Turner
Chairman of the Board Executive Vice President,
and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Year Ended
2002 2001 2000
INEESAIBS . ..ot $ 1,548,556 $ 1,411,498 $ 1,231,095
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales (including buying and store occupancy costs) . ...........oovene... 898,795 817,043 718,547
Selling, general and administrative expenses .................coiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 448,127 399,755 349,394
Depreciation and amOItization .. ... ..veeein it eeia e eenrenenn, 42,821 43,184 39,973
1,389,743 1,259,982 1,107,914
OperatinginCome .........ooviiiii i e 158,813 151,516 123,181
Nonoperating (income) and expenses:
Interest and INVeStMENtINCOME .. .....ovivinn i, (2,484) (1,854) (2,349)
INTEFeSt EXPETISE . ...ttt e e e 2,300 3,130 6,918
(184) 1,276 4,569
Income before incometaxes ............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 158,997 150,240 118,612
Provision for income taxes . . ....... ... i 58,788 55,590 43,887
IS 34 T o] ' L $ 100,209 $ 94,650 $ 74,725
Eamnings per share:
BaSIC . o $ 1.06 $ .98 3 .78
Diluted ... $ 1.04 $ 97 $ 75
Dividends declared pershare .............o i $ .16 $ 15 $ 12
Average shares outstanding during period:
BasiC . . i 94,414 96,306 95,766
Diluted ..o 96,185 97,952 103,297

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands except share amounts)

ASSETS

Cuirent assets:

Cash, including temporary investments of $213,488 and $31,142, respectively

Beneficial interest in securitized receivables

Other accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $275 and $295, respectively ...............cooiiial

INVENTOTIES .. o\ttt e

Properties, et ...

Other NoNCUITENt aSSetS .. .. .ovvv i vttt eaennes

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-termdebt ................ .. ...

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................
Total current liabilities .............oocoi

Long-termdebt ...... ... .. ..

Other noncurrent liabilities ................ocoiviii ...

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, $1.00 par, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 100,779,000 issued
Paid-incapital ..............
Retained earnings ..............oovviiiiiiiiiiiii i,

Cumulative other comprehensive income .................

Less - 7,362,000 and 4,619,000 common shares in treasury, at cost, respectively .......................

Less — unearned compensation ................c.iiiiiia.

Commitments and CONENGEINCIES . . ..... vttt ittt et tiiaa e ettt e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2002

6,205
275,433
43,286

605,153

209,954
47,565

3 862672

208,396

25,356
43,264

100,779

140,190

429,910
(4,702)
(80,521)

585,656

$ 862,672

2001

$ 46841
75,403

8,370
310,704

35,748

477,066

212,066
46,578

$ 735710

3 -

144,110

144,110

25,000
34,721

100,779

139,424

344,809
(3,115)
{49,933)
(85)

531,879

$ 735710
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Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands except share amounts)

Year Ended
2002 2001 2000
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INELINCOITIE L .« ettt ettt et e et e et e ettt eeens $ 100,209 $ 94,650 $ 74725
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .............covoieeiiii i e 42,821 43,184 39,973
Lossondisposal of fixed assets ........oooou i 4,205 6,514 5,828
Deferred compensation ... 3,697 2,072 1,543
DEferTed tAXES ... v vttt ettt e (2,238) 735 1,724
O . e e (1,707 (184) 1,938
Change in cash from:
9N o1 1= 34,804 (39,127) (10,133)
Other accounts receivable and other current assets ........................ (2,983) (5,847) 586
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses .............iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieaen 66,048 6,280 8,962
Other NONCWITENT ASSELS . ... vttt ettt eieeeas (32) (378) (2,382)
Other noncurrent liabilities .................oo i (500) 390) (911)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ........................... ... 244,324 107,509 121,853
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditires ... ... ee i e (57,925) (42,745) (48,219)
Proceeds from disposition of properties ... 16,682 353 19,425
Net cost from disposition of Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc. properties ........... - - (439)
Acquisitions, net of cashacquired ...............co oo - (3,917) -
Beneficial interest in securitized receivables .................. oo 30,783 (21,583) (12,820)
Net cash used in investing aCtivities ............ooviiiiiiiiiiineinnennns. 10,460) 67,892) 42,053)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash diVIdends .....covneni i e (15,134) (14,494) (11,504)
Purchases of treasury stock ....... .. i e (44,137) (34,270) (31,806)
Proceeds from stock options exercised, stock purchase plan and other, net . ... .. 13,463 5,627 4,148
Borrowings underlong-termdebt ............ ... 712 82,500 4,035
Repayments of long-termdebt ........... .. i - (82,515) (36,242)
Net cash used in financing activities ..................c.ccciiiii . (45,096) 43,152) (71,369)
Changeincash and cashequivalents.................. oo, 188,768 (3,535) 8,431
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...................coiiii . 46,841 50,376 41,945
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year ..., $ 235609 $_ 46841 $ 50376

Supplemental cash flow information:

TNLEreSt PAIA . ..o v vttt e $ 2,493
INCOME taXeS PAI ..o vvvvi ettt e $ 35951

$ 3,171

S 58302

$ 7,137

$ 40883

During fiscal 2001, the Company issued 4,764,450 shares of its common stock upon the conversion of $39,164,000 principal amount of

53/4% convertible subordinated notes.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Cumulative
Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Treasury  Unearned Shareholders’
Shares  Amount Capital  Earnings Income Stock  Compensation  Equity

Balance February 27,1999 ................... 97,672 $100,779 $159,631 $201457 $ (1,850) $ (54,654) $(1,469) $ 403,894
Comprehensive income:

Netincome ...................ooiiiii. - - - 74,725 - - - 74,725

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments ......... - - - - 314 - - 314
Comprehensiveincome ...................... 75,039
Purchases of treasury stock ................... (4,393) - - - - (31,806) - (31,806)
Restricted stock forfeits and amortization ..... (83) - 709 - - (1,392) 1,168 485
Exercise of stock options, stock purchase

planandother ............................ 625 - 4,629) - - 9,184 - 4,555
Cash dividends ($.12 pershare) ............... - - - (11,504) - - - (11,504)
Balance February 26,2000 ................... 93,821 100,779 155,711 264,678 (1,536) (78,668) (301) 440,663
Comprehensive income:

Netincome ...............coooiiiiiian - - - 94,650 - - - 94,650

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments ........ - - - - (1,579) - - {1,579)
Comprehensiveincome ...................... 93,071
Purchases of tteasury stock ................... (3,269) - - - - (34,270) - (34,270)
Restricted stock amortization . ................ - - - - - - 216 216
Exercise of stock options, stock purchase

planandother ............................ 825 - (1,774) {25) - 9,119 - 7,320
Cash dividends ($.15 pershare) ............... - - - (14,494) - - - (14,494)
Conversion of 53:% convertibledebt . ......... 4,764 - (14,513) - - 53,886 - 39,373
Balance March 3,2001 ...................... 96,141 100,779 139,424 344,809 3.115) (49,933) (85) 531,879
Comprehensive income:

Netincome ..., - - - 100,209 - - - 100,209

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments ........ - - - - (1,587) - - (1,587)
Comprehensiveincome ...................... 98,622
Purchases of treasury stock ................... (4,021) - - - - (44,137) - (44,137)
Restricted stock amortization . ................ - - - - - - 85 85
Exercise of stock options, stock purchase

planandother ................ ..o 1,269 - 766 26 - 13,549 - 14,341
Cash dividends ($.16 pershare) ............... - - - (15,134) - - - {15,134)
Balance March2,2002 ...................... 93389 $100779 $140190 $429910 $(4702) $(80521) $ - $ 585656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - Pier 1 Imports, Inc. is one of North America’s
largest specialty retailers of imported decorative home
furnishings, gifts and related items, with retail stores
located in the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico, the United
Kingdom and Mexico. Concentrations of risk with respect

to sourcing the Company’s inventory purchases are limited
due to the large number of vendors or suppliers and their
geographic dispersion around the world. The Company sells
merchandise imported from over 40 different countries, with
35% of its sales derived from merchandise produced in China,
11% derived from merchandise produced in India and 29%
derived from merchandise produced in Indonesia, Thailand,
Brazil, Italy, the Philippines and Mexico. The remaining 25%
of sales was from merchandise produced in various Asian,
European, Central American, South American and African

countries or was obtained from U.S. manufacturers.

Basis of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements
of Pier 1 Imports, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries

(the “Company”) include the accounts of all subsidiary
companies except Pier 1 Funding, LLC, which is a non-
consolidated, bankruptcy remote, securitization subsidiary.
See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Material intercompany transactions and balances have

been eliminated.

Acquisitions - The Company completed its acquisition of
certain assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Cargo
Furniture, Inc. and formed New Cargo Fufniture, Inc.
(“Cargo”) for $3,931,000, including cash acquired, on
February 21, 2001. These assets and liabilities were

included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of
March 3, 2001; however, this acquisition had no effect on the
Company’s fiscal 2001 operations. Cargo is a retailer and
wholesaler of casual lifestyle furniture, gifts and home décor
with a focus on children’s furniture. This acquisition was
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting,
and ultimately resulted in goodwill of $4,386,000, which has
been amortized using the straight-line method over 20 years
through fiscal 2002, at which time amortization ceases due
to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142. The pro forma effect on the
Company's results of operations, as if the acquisition had
been completed at the beginning of fiscal 2001, was not
significant. Cargo’s operations for fiscal 2002 are fully

consolidated with the Company’s results.

Use of estimates - Preparation of the financial statements

in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made
in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements to

conform to the fiscal 2002 presentation.

Fiscal periods - The Company utilizes 5-4-4 (week) quarterly
accounting periods with the fiscal year ending on the
Saturday nearest the last day of February. Fiscal 2002 and
2000 consisted of 52-week years and fiscal 2001 was a 53-week
year. Fiscal 2002 ended March 2, 2002, fiscal 2001 ended
March 3, 2001 and fiscal 2000 ended February 26, 2000.

Cash and cash equivalents - The Company considers all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity date

of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The effect
of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on cash is

not material.

Translation of foreign currencies - Assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at fiscal
year-end exchange rates. Income and expense items are
translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the
year. Translation adjustments arising from differences in
exchange rates from period to period are included as a
separate component of shareholders’” equity and are

included in comprehensive income.

Financial instruments - The fair value of financial instruments
is determined by reference to various market data and

other valuation techniques as appropriate. There were no
significant assets or liabilities with a fair value different from
the recorded value as of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001.

Risk management instruments: The Company may utilize
various financial instruments to manage interest rate and
market risk associated with its on- and off-balance sheet

commitments.

The Company hedges certain commitments denominated
in foreign currencies through the purchase of forward
contracts. The forward contracts are purchased only to
cover specific commitments to buy merchandise for resale.
The Company also uses contracts to hedge its exposure

associated with the repatriation of funds from its Canadian




Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

operations. At March 2, 2002, the notional amount of the
Company’s forward foreign currency exchange contracts and
contracts to hedge its exposure associated with repatriation
of Canadian funds totaled approximately $3.9 million and
$12.2 million, respectively. For financial accounting
purposes, the Company has not designated such contracts
as hedges. Thus, changes in the fair value of both of

these forward contracts are included in the Company’s

consolidated statements of operations.

The Company enters into forward foreign currency exchange
contracts with major financial institutions and continually
monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of,

these counterparties to such financial instruments. The
Company does not expect non-performance by any of

the counterparties, and any losses incurred in the event

of non-performance would not be material.

Beneficial interest in securitized receivables - In February
1997, the Company sold all of its proprietary credit card
receivables to a special-purpose wholly-owned subsidiary,
Pier 1 Funding, Inc., predecessor to Pier 1 Funding, LLC
(“Funding”), which transferred the receivables to the Pier 1
Imports Credit Card Master Trust (the “Master Trust”). The
Master Trust is not consolidated by the Company as it meets
the requirements of a qualifying special-purpose entity
under SFAS No. 140. The Master Trust issues beneficial
interests that represent undivided interests in the assets

of the Master Trust consisting of the transferred receivables
and all cash flows from collections of such receivables. The
beneficial interests include certain interests retained by
Funding, which are represented by Class B Certificates, and
the residual interest in the Master Trust (the excess of the
principal amount of receivables held in the Master Trust over
the portion represented by the certificates sold to investors
and the Class B Certificates).

Gain or loss on the sale of receivables depends in part on

the previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved
in the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the
retained interests based on their relative fair value at the
date of transfer. A servicing asset or liability was not
recognized in the Company’s credit card securitizations

(and thus was not considered in the gain or loss computation)
since the Company received adequate compensation relative
to current market servicing prices to service the receivables
sold. Initial transaction costs for credit card securitizations
were deferred and are being amortized over the expected life

of the securitization.

The beneficial interest in the Master Trust is accounted for as
an available-for-sale security. The Company estimates fair
value of its beneficial interest in the Master Trust, both upon
initial securitization and thereafter, based on the present
value of future expected cash flows estimated using manage-
ment’s best estimates of key assumptions including credit
losses and timeliness of payments. As of March 2, 2002,

the Company’s assumptions included credit losses of 5%

of the outstanding balance and expected payment within a
six-month period using a discount rate of 15% to calculate
the present value of the future cash flows. A sensitivity analy-
sis was performed assuming a hypothetical 20% adverse
change in both interest rates and credit losses, which had an
immaterial impact on the fair value of the Company’s bene-

ficial interest.

Inventories - Inventories are comprised of finished
merchandise and are stated at the lower of average cost or

market; cost is determined on a weighted average method.

Properties, maintenance and repairs - Buildings,
equipment, furniture and fixtures, and leasehold interests
and improvements are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over estimated remaining useful lives
of the assets, generally thirty years for buildings and three
to seven years for equipment, furniture and fixtures.
Amortization of improvements to leased properties is

based upon the shorter of the remaining primary lease term
or the estimated useful lives of such assets. Depreciation
costs were $41,047,000, $41,882,000 and $38,672,000 in fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and renewals, which
do not materially prolong the original useful lives of the
assets, are charged to expense as incurred. In the case of
disposals, assets and the related depreciation are removed
from the accounts and the net amount, less proceeds from

disposal, is credited or charged to income.

Revenue recognition - Revenue is recognized upon
customer receipt or delivery for retail sales, including sales
under deferred payment promotions on the Company’s
proprietary credit card. An allowance has been established
to provide for estimated merchandise returns. Revenue
from gift cards, gift certificates and merchandise credits

is deferred until redemption.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Advertising costs - Advertising costs are expensed the
first time the advertising takes place. Advertising costs
were $64,414,000, $59,721,000 and $54,970,000 in fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Prepaid advertising
at the end of fiscal years 2002 and 2001 was $2,303,000
and $2,086,000, respectively, consisting primarily of

production costs for advertisements not yet run.

Income taxes - The Company records income tax expense
using the liability method for taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on
differences between financial statement and tax bases of
assets and liabilities using presently enacted tax rates.
Deferred federal income taxes, net of applicable foreign tax
credits, are not provided on the undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries to the extent the Company intends to

permanently reinvest such earnings abroad.

Stock-based compensation - The Company grants stock
options and restricted stock for a fixed number of shares
to employees with stock option exercise prices equal to
the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant.
The Company accounts for stock option grants and
restricted stock grants in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and, accordingly, recognizes

no compensation expense for the stock option grants.

Earnings per share - Basic earnings per share amounts

were determined by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted earnings per share amounts were similarly
computed, but included the effect, when dilutive, of the
Company’s weighted average number of stock options
outstanding and the average number of common shares
that would be issuable upon conversion of the Company'’s
convertible securities. To determine diluted earnings per
share, interest and amortization of debt issue costs related to
the subordinated notes, net of any applicable taxes, have been

added back to net income to reflect assumed conversions.

The following earnings per share calculations reflect the
effect of the Company’s conversion of its 534% convertible
subordinated notes, which were primarily converted,
without interest, on or before March 23, 2000. Earnings
per share amounts are calculated as follows (in thousands

except per share amounts}:

2002 2001 2000
Netincome ............... $100,209 $ 94650 $ 74,725
Plus interest and debt
issue costs, net of tax,
on the assumed
conversion of the 53/4%
subordinated notes ... .. - - 2,237
Diluted net income........ $100,209 $ 94650 $ 76,962
Average shares outstanding:
Basic................hnl 94,414 96,306 95,766
Plus assumed exercise
of stock options .. .... 1,771 1,325 644
Plus assumed conversion
of the 534%
subordinated notes. .. - 321 6,887
Diluted ................... 96,185 97,952 103,297
Earnings per share:
Basic.................oul $ 106 3 98 $ .78
Diluted ................... $ 104 % 97 $ .75

Stock options for which the exercise price was greater than
the average market price of common shares were not included
in the computation of diluted earnings per share as the
effect would be antidilutive. At the end of fiscal years 2002,
2001 and 2000, there were 433,800, 1,078,200 and 1,157,025,
respectively, stock options outstanding with exercise prices
greater than the average market price of the Company’s

common shares.

Impact of recently issued accounting standards - In the first
quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” which was amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS
No. 138. This statement establishes accounting and reporting
guidelines for derivatives and requires the Company to
record all derivatives as assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet at fair value. The Company’s use of derivatives is
primarily limited to forward foreign currency exchange
contracts, which the Company uses to mitigate exposures to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company
also uses contracts which hedge the repatriation of Canadian
funds. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133, the Company did

not designate such derivatives as hedging instruments; thus,
the changes in the fair value of the derivatives have been

included in the consolidated statements of operations. Prior
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

to adoption, the Company deferred all gains and losses on
its derivative contracts and recognized such gains and losses
as an adjustment to the transaction price. The adoption

of SFAS No. 133 has not had a material impact on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets or its statements

of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities,” in the first quarter of fiscal
2002. This statement established new conditions for a
securitization to be accounted for as a sale of receivables,
changed the requirements for an entity to be a qualifying
special-purpose entity, and modified the conditions for
determining whether a transferor has relinquished

control over transferred assets. SFAS No. 140 also requires
additional disclosures related to securitized financial assets
and retained interests in securitized financial assets. See
Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Prior to adoption, the Company made the necessary
amendments to its securitization agreements and continues
to receive sale treatment for its securitized proprietary
credit card receivables. The implementation of

SFAS No. 140 did not have a material impact on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets or its statements

of operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
which supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 38,
“Accounting for Preacquisition Contingencies of Purchased
Enterprises.” Statement No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-
interests method of accounting for business combinations
and requires all such transactions to be accounted for under
the purchase method. This statement also addresses the
initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
is effective for all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated balance
sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’ equity

and cash flows.

In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” which supersedes APB
Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” This statement addresses

the initial recognition and measurement of intangible

assets acquired outside of a business combination and

the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
subsequent to their acquisition. SFAS No. 142 also provides
that intangible assets with finite useful lives be amortized
and that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives
will not be amortized, but will rather be tested on an annual
basis for impairment. The Company is required to adopt
SFAS No. 142 for its fiscal year beginning March 3, 2002. The
Company has analyzed the implementation requirements
and does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 142
will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
balance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’

equity and cash flows.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which
replaces SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of.” Statement No. 144 retains the fundamental provisions
of SFAS No. 121 with additional guidance on estimating
cash flows when performing a recoverability test, requires
that a long-lived asset to be disposed of, other than by sale,
be classified as “held and used” until it is disposed of and
establishes more restrictive criteria to classify an asset as
“held for sale.” SFAS No. 144 also supersedes APB Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting

the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions,” regarding the disposal of a segment of a
business and would extend the reporting of a discontinued
operation to a “component of an entity” and requires the
operating losses thereon to be recognized in the period in
which they occur. The Company is required to adopt SFAS
No. 144 for its fiscal year beginning March 3, 2002. The
Company has analyzed the implementation requirements
and does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 144
will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets or its statements of operations, shareholders’

equity and cash flows.

NOTE 2 - PROPRIETARY CREDIT CARD INFORMATION
The proprietary credit card receivables, securitized as
discussed below, arise primarily under open-end revolving
credit accounts issued by the Company's subsidiary, Pier 1
National Bank, to finance purchases of merchandise and
services offered by the Company. These accounts have
various billing and payment structures, including varying
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minimum payment levels. The Company has an agreement
with a third party to provide certain credit card processing
and related credit services, while the Company maintains
control over credit policy decisions and customer service

standards.

As of fiscal 2002 year-end, the Company had approximately
5,178,000 proprietary cardholders and approximately
1,205,000 customer credit accounts considered active
(accounts with a purchase within the previous 12 months).
The Company’s proprietary credit card sales accounted

for 28.9% of total U.S. store sales in fiscal 2002. Net
proprietary credit card income is included in selling, general
and administrative expenses on the Company’s statements
of operations. The Company has sold virtually all of its
proprietary credit card receivables. The following information
presents a summary of the Company’s proprietary credit
card results for each of the last three fiscal years on a
managed basis (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Income:
Finance charge income,
net of debt
service costs.......... $ 24124 $ 21,759 $ 16,780
Insurance and other
income.............. 231 253 287
24,355 22,012 17,067
Costs:
Processing fees. ......... 14,197 13,608 10,763
Baddebts.............. . 6,977 5,285 4,664
21,174 18,893 15,427
Net proprietary credit
card income. ......... $ 3181 $ 3119 $ 1640
Proprietary credit card
sales. ... $412,469 $377,045 $300,462

Costs as a percent of
proprietary credit
cardsales............... 5.13% 5.01% 5.13%

Gross proprietary credit
card receivables at
vear-end................ $140,713  $122,876  $100,095

Proprietary credit card
sales as a percent of
total U.S. store sales . . . .. 28.9% 28.9% 26.3%

In February 1997, the Company securitized its entire portfolio
of proprietary credit card receivables (the “Receivables”).
The Company sold all existing Receivables to a special-
purpose wholly-owned subsidiary, Pier 1 Funding, Inc.,
predecessor to Pier 1 Funding, LLC (“Funding”), which
transferred the Receivables to the Pier 1 Imports Credit Card
Master Trust (the “Master Trust”}. The Master Trust issues
beneficial interests that represent undivided interests in the
assets of the Master Trust consisting of the Receivables and
all cash flows from collections of the Receivables. On a daily
basis, the Company sells to Funding and Funding transfers
to the Master Trust all newly generated Receivables, except
those failing certain eligibility criteria, and receives as the
purchase price payments of cash (funded from previously
undistributed principal collections from the Receivables in
the Master Trust) and retains residual interests in the Master
Trust. Cash flows received from the Master Trust for each of

the last three fiscal years are as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Proceeds from collections

reinvested in revolving

securitizations .......... $ 366,228 $ 347,404 $ 303,340
Proceeds from new

securitizations . ......... $ 49226 $ - % —
Servicing fees

received ................ $ 2381 $ 2189 $ 1820
Cash flows received

on retained interests. . . .. $172,473 $199,619 $ 147,314

Gains or losses resulting from the sales of the Company’s
proprietary credit card receivables were not material in any
of the periods presented. The Company’s exposure to deteri-
oration in the performance of the receivables is limited to its
retained beneficial interest in the Master Trust. As such, the
Company has no corporate obligation to reimburse Funding,
the Master Trust or purchasers of any certificates isstied by
the Master Trust for credit losses from the Receivables.

Funding was capitalized by the Company as a special-
purpose wholly-owned subsidiary that is subject to certain
covenants and restrictions, including a restriction from
engaging in any business or activity unrelated to acquiring
and selling interests in receivables. The Master Trust is not

consolidated with the Company.
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In the initial sale of the Receivables, the Company sold all
of its Receivables and received cash and beneficial interests
in the Master Trust. The Master Trust sold to third parties
$50.0 million of Series 1997-1 Class A Certificates, which
bore interest at 6.74% and were scheduled to mature in
May 2002. Funding retained $14.1 million of Series 1997-1
Class B Certificates, which were subordinated to the

Class A Certificates. Funding also retained the residual

interest in the Master Trust.

In September 2001, the Master Trust negotiated the purchase
of all of the Series 1997-1 Class A Certificates from their
holders. Subsequently the Master Trust retired both the
Series 1997-1 Class A and Class B Certificates in connection
with the issuance of $100 million in 2001-1 Class A Certificates
to a third party. The 2001-1 Class A Certificates bear interest
at a floating rate equal to the rate on commercial paper
issued by the third party. As of March 2, 2002, this rate was
1.81%. Funding continued to retain the residual interest

in the Master Trust and $9.3 million in 2001-1 Class B
Certificates, which are subordinated to the 2001-1 Class A
Certificates. As a result of this securitization transaction, the
Company effectively sold a portion of its beneficial interest
for net proceeds of $49.2 million. As of March 2, 2002

and March 3, 2001, the Company had $44.6 million and
$75.4 million, respectively, in beneficial interests (comprised
primarily of principal and interest related to the underlying
Receivables) in the Master Trust.

Under generally accepted accounting principles, if the
structure of the securitization meets certain requirements,
these transactions are accounted for as sales of receivables.
As the Company's securitizations met such requirements

as discussed above, they were accounted for as sales. Gains
or losses from sales of these receivables were not material
during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000. The Company expects

no material impact on net income in future years as a result
of the sales of receivables, although the precise amounts will
be dependent on a number of factors such as interest rates

and levels of securitization.
NOTE 3 - PROPERTIES

Properties are summarized as follows at March 2, 2002 and
March 3, 2001 (in thousands):

2002 2001
Land ... $ 16458 $ 22,353
Buildings ... 51,747 59,716
Equipment, furniture and fixtures. . ...... 238,454 207,956
Leasehold interests and improvements... _183,676 171,021

490,335 461,046
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization ...........coviiiiane.n 280,381 248,980

Properties,net..................... $209,954 $212,066

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
LIABILITIES/OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities at
March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001 (in thousands):

2002 2001

Trade accounts payable ................. $ 78961 $ 52,637
Accrued payroll and other

employee-related liabilities ........... 36,999 33,685
Accrued taxes, other than income. ........ 16,815 15,576
Gift cards, gift certificates and

merchandise credits outstanding. . .. .. 29,288 18,989
Accrued income taxes payable........... 29,738 7,786
Other ..., 16,239 15,437

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities . ................. $208,040 $144110

Accrued averagerent.................... $ 19230 $ 17,590
Other ... 24,034 17,131

Other noncurrent liabilities ........... $ 43,264 $ 34,721

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT AND AVAILABLE CREDIT

Long-term debt is summarized as follows at March 2, 2002
and March 3, 2001 (in thousands):

2002 2001
Industrial revenue bonds. ............... $ 25000 $ 25,000
Other........coooviiii i 712 -
25712 25,000
Less — portion due within one year. ...... 356 -
Long-termdebt ................... $ 25356 $ 25,000
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In fiscal 1987, the Company entered into industrial revenue
development bond loan agreements aggregating $25 million.
Proceeds were used to construct three warehouse distribution
facilities. The loan agreements and related tax-exempt bonds
mature in the year 2026. The Company’s interest rates on

the loans are based on the bond interest rates, which are
market driven, reset weekly and are similar to other tax-
exempt municipal debt issues. The Company'’s weighted
average interest rates were 3.8% and 5.7% for fiscal 2002

and 2001, respectively.

In September 1996, the Company issued $86.3 million
principal amount of 534% convertible subordinated notes
due October 1, 2003. The notes were convertible at any
time prior to maturity, unless previously redeemed or
repurchased, into shares of common stock of the Company
at a conversion price of $8.22 per share, adjusted for stock
splits. The Company had the option to redeem the notes, in
whole or in part, on or after October 2, 1999, at a redemption
price (expressed as a percentage of principal amount) of
103% of par value which was scheduled to decline annually
to 100% of par value at the maturity date. Interest on the
notes was payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1
of each year. In February 2000, the Company announced its
intention to call the remaining $39.2 million outstanding
principal amount of these notes for redemption on

March 23, 2000. The notes were convertible intoc common
stock of the Company at any time prior to the close of
business on March 22, 2000, at a conversion price of $8.22
per share. During March 2000, the Company converted
$39,164,000 of the notes into 4,764,450 shares of the
Company’s common stock and redeemed $15,000 of the
notes for cash at a redemption price of 103% of par value.
The conversion and redemption of these notes during fiscal
2001 reduced the Company’s debt by $39.2 million and
increased its capitalization by $39.4 million. Accordingly,
these notes are not detailed in the above schedule as the

notes were fully redeemed at fiscal 2001 year-end.

In November 2001, the Company executed a note payable in
the original principal amount of £500,000. The note bears
interest at 4.0% per annum and has a maturity date of April
2003. Interest is payable in semiannual installments and
principle is payable in two installments, June 2002 and

April 2003. At March 2, 2002, this note was valued at $712,000.

Long-term debt matures as follows (in thousands):

Long-term
Fiscal Year Debt
2003 . e $ 356
2004 .. 356
2005 -
2006 . e -
2007 .ot -
Thereafter ........coovviiiiiiii 25,000
Totallong-termdebt ..................... ..ol $ 25712

The Company has a $125 million unsecured credit facility
available, which expires in November 2003. The interest rate
on borrowings against this facility is determined based upon
a spread from LIBOR that varies depending upon either the
Company’s senior debt rating or leverage ratio. All of the
$125 million revolving credit facility was available at fiscal
2002 year-end. The Company had no borrowings under this
facility during fiscal 2002. The weighted average interest rate

on borrowings outstanding for fiscal 2001 was 7.2%.

The Company has a $120 million short-term line of credit,
which is primarily used to issue merchandise letters of credit.
At fiscal 2002 year-end, approximately $64.6 million had
been utilized for letters of credit, leaving $55.4 million
available. The Company also has $28.7 million in credit lines
used to issue other special-purpose letters of credit, all of
which were fully utilized at fiscal 2002 year-end. Of the $28.7
million in special-purpose letters of credit, $25.6 milllion

related to the Company'’s industrial revenue bonds.

Most of the Company’s loan agreements require that the
Company maintain certain financial ratios and limit specific
payments and equity distributions including cash dividends,
loans to shareholders and repurchases of common stock.

The Company is in compliance with all debt covenants.

NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company offers a qualified, defined contribution
employee retirement plan to all its full- and part-time
personnel who are at least 18 years old and have been
employed for a minimum of six months. Employees
contributing 1% to 5% of their compensation receive a
matching Company contribution of up to 3%. Company
contributions to the plan were $1,734,000, $1,790,000 and
$1,753,000 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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In addition, a non-qualified retirement savings plan is
available for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for certain employees whose benefits under the qualified
plan are limited under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company’s expense for this non-qualified
plan was not significant for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000.

The Company maintains supplemental retirement plans
(the “Plans”) for certain of its executive officers. The Plans
provide that upon death, disability or reaching retirement
age, a participant will receive benefits based on highest
compensation and years of service. The Company recorded
expenses related to the Plans of $2,488,000, $1,850,000 and
$1,409,000 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Measurement of plan assets and obligations for the Plans
are calculated as of each fiscal year-end. The discount rates
used to determine the actuarial present value of projected
benefit obligations under such plans were 7.25% and

7.50% as of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001, respectively.
The assumed weighted average rate increase in future
compensation levels under such plans was 5.0% as of both
March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001. The following provides a
reconciliation of benefit obligations and funded status of the
Plans as of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001 (in thousands):

2002 2001
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation,
beginning ofyear................ $ 12962 $ 8944
Service cost. ......oviniiiiiii e 569 434
Interestcost .....ovvveviiiiiieannn. 1,055 779
Actuarialloss ...................... 1,278 -
Planamendments ................. - 2,805
Projected benefit obligation,
endofyear...................... $ 15864 $ 12,962
Reconciliation of funded status:
Fundedstatus ..................... $(15,864) $(12,962)
Unrecognized netloss.............. 1,338 60
Unrecognized net
transitional obligation ........... - 2
Unrecognized prior service cost . ... 7,086 7,948
Accrued pensioncost .............. (7,440) (4,952)
Additional minimum liability....... (3,980) (5,663)
Accrued benefit liability . ........... $(11,420) $ (10,615)
Amounts recognized in the
balance sheets:
Accrued benefit liability . ........... $ (11,420) $ (10,615)
Intangibleasset.................... 3,980 5,663
Net amount recognized ............ $ (7,440) $ (4,952)

Net periodic benefit cost included the following actuarially
determined components during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000
(in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Service cost ............... $ 569 $ 434 $ 459
Interestcost............... 1,055 779 543
Amortization of

unrecognized prior

servicecost............. 862 635 374
Amortization of

net obligation

at transition ............ 2 2 2
Recognized net

actuarialloss............ - - 31

$ 2488 $ 180 § 1409

NOTE 7 - MATTERS CONCERNING
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stock purchase plan - Substantially all employees and

directors are eligible to participate in the Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

Stock Purchase Plan under which the Company’s common
stock is purchased on behalf of employees at market prices
through regular payroll deductions. Each employee
participant may contribute up to 10% of the eligible
portions of compensation and directors may contribute
part or all of their directors’ fees. The Company contributes
from 10% to 100% of the participants’ contributions,
depending upon length of participation and date of entry
into the plan. Company contributions to the plan were
$985,000, $921,000 and $954,000 in fiscal years 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Restricted stock grant plans - In fiscal 1998, the Company
issued 238,500 shares of its common stock to key officers
pursuant to a Management Restricted Stock Plan, which
provides for the issuance of up to 415,600 shares. The fiscal
1998 restricted stock grant vested over a four-year period of
continued employment. The fair value at the date of grant
of these restricted stock shares was expensed over the afore-

mentioned vesting period. The fair value at the date of grant

of the restricted shares granted in fiscal 1998 was $3,000,000.

Shares not vested were returned to the plan if employment
was terminated for any reason. To date, 107,184 shares have

been returned to the plan.

In fiscal 1991, the Company issued 726,804 shares of its

common stock to key officers pursuant to a Restricted Stock
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Grant Plan, which provided for the issuance of up to
1,037,214 shares. These shares vested, and the fair value at
the date of grant was expensed, over a ten-year period of
continued employment. Unvested shares are returned to the
plan upon employment termination. As of March 2, 2002,
407,742 shares have been returned to the plan. In fiscal 2000,
the Restricted Stock Grant Plan was terminated by the Board
of Directors and is no longer available for issuance of
common stock to key officers. The final vesting period was
March 2000.

Total compensation expense for both of the restricted stock
grant plans was $85,000, $216,000 and $485,000 for fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Stock option plans - In June 1999, the Company adopted
the Pier 1 Imports, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (the “Plan”). The
Plan will ultimately replace the Company’s two previous
stock option plans, which were the 1989 Employee Stock
Option Plan (the “Employee Plan”) and the 1989 Non-
Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan”).

The Plan provides for the granting of options to directors
and employees with an exercise price not less than the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of the grant.
Options may be either Incentive Stock Options authorized
under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or
non-qualified options, which do not qualify as Incentive
Stock Options. Current director compensation provides for
non-qualified options covering 6,000 shares to be granted
once each year to each non-employee director. Additionally,
the Plan authorizes a Director Deferred Stock Program.

As the program is currently implemented by the Board

of Directors, each director must defer a minimum of 50%
and may defer up to 100% of the director’s cash fees into

a deferred stock account. The amount deferred receives a
50% matching contribution from the Company. The Plan
provides that a maximum of 7,000,000 shares of common

stock may be issued under the Plan, of which not more than
250,000 may be issued in exchange for deferred stock units.
Options issued to non-director employees vest equally over
a period of four years while directors’ options are fully vest-
ed at the date of issuance. Additionally, employee options
will fully vest upon retirement or, under certain conditions,
a change in control of the Company. As of March 2, 2002
and March 3, 2001, respectively, there were 1,026,978 and
3,520,887 shares available for grant under the Plan, of

which 171,673 and 200,381 may be used for deferred stock
issuance. Additionally, outstanding options covering 894,200
and 429,600 shares were exercisable and 78,327 and 49,619
shares were issuable in exchange for deferred stock units

at fiscal years ended 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Plan
will expire in June 2009, and the Board of Directors may at
any time suspend or terminate the Plan or amend the Plan, '

subject to certain limitations.

Under the Employee Plan, options may be granted to qualify
as Incentive Stock Options under Section 422 of the Internal
Revenue Code or as non-qualified options. Most options
issued under the Employee Plan vest over a period of four

to five years. As of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001,
outstanding options covering 2,303,198 and 2,318,042 shares
were exercisable and 932,684 and 878,059 shares were
available for grant, respectively. The Employee Plan expires
in June 2004. The Director Plan expired in fiscal 2000. As

of March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001, outstanding options
covering 48,264 and 61,764 shares, respectively, were
exercisable under the Director Plan. Due to the expiration

of the Director Plan during fiscal 2000, no shares are
available for future grants. Both plans were subject to
adjustments for stock dividends and certain other changes

to the Company’s capitalization.

A summary of stock option translations related to the
stock option plans during the three fiscal years ended
March 2, 2002 is as follows:
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The Company accounts for its stock options using the
intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by
APB Opinion No. 25, but is required to disclose the pro forma
effect on net income and earnings per share as if the options
were accounted for using a fair value-based method of
accounting. The fair values for options issued in fiscal 2002,
2001 and 2000 have been estimated as of the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes or a similar option pricing model

with the following weighted average assumptions for 2002,

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Exercisable Shares
Exercise Fair Value at Number of Weighted Average
Shares Price Date of Grant Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at February 27,1999 ...............cooi i 4,597,830 $ 9.20 1,810,819 $ 6.66
Optionsgranted ... 2,379,500 6.20 $3.18
Optionsexercised ..............coviiiiiiiiiiiiiaan.. {(134,936) 4.63
Options cancelled orexpired ................ccoooeoi. (793,187) 10.63
Outstanding at February 26,2000 ......................... 6,049,207 7.94 2,214,717 7.28
Optionsgranted ..............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiainenn. 1,589,000 10.49 531
Optionsexercised .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.. (569,326) 5.38
Options cancelled orexpired ............ccvvvvvvnnnnn. (351,900) 8.47
Outstandingat March 3,2001 ....................oeils 6,716,981 8.73 2,809,406 8.07
Optionsgranted ..........ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiien, 2,711,500 8.32 4.59
Options exercised . ..., (937,619) 7.06
Options cancelled orexpired .............coooooveenn.. (314,125) 9.90
Outstanding at March 2,2002 .. ..., 8,176,737 8.74 3,245,662 8.81
For shares outstanding at March 2, 2002:
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Shares  Weighted Average
Total Exercise Remaining Currently  Exercise Price -
Ranges of Exercise Prices Shares Price Contractual Life Exercisable Exercisable Shares
B2.85 -8 819 L. e 2,732,912 $ 596 5.82 1,794,112 $ 589
$826-F 850 ..o 3,026,475 8.29 9.15 289,600 8.49
$9.08-B18.50 ...t 2,417,350 12.45 7.51 1,161,950 13.39

2001 and 2000, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 3.75%,
5.68% and 5.79%, expected stock price volatility of 60.25%,
55.86% and 51.50%, expected dividend yields of 0.8%, 1.0%
and 1.0% and weighted average expected lives of six years
from date of grant to date of exercise for all options. For
purposes of computing pro forma net income and earnings
per share, the fair value of the stock options is amortized
on a straight-line basis as compensation expense over the

vesting periods of the options. The pro forma effects on net
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income and earnings per share are as follows (in thousands

except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Pro forma netincome ... .... $95863 $91573 § 72317
Pro forma basic
earnings pershare ....... $ 102 §$ 95 §$ .76
Pro forma diluted
earnings per share ....... $ 100 $ 983 § 72

Option valuation models are used in estimating the fair
value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the expected stock price volatility and the average life

of options. Because the Company’s stock options have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,

in management’s opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value
of its stock options. In addition, the pro forma net income
and earnings per share amounts shown above for fiscal 2002,
2001 and 2000 do not include the effect of any grants made
prior to fiscal 1996.

Share purchase rights plan - On December 9, 1994, the
Board of Directors adopted a Share Purchase Rights Plan
and declared a dividend of one common stock purchase
right (a “Right”) payable on each outstanding share of the
Company’s common stock on December 21, 1994, and
authorized the issuance of Rights for subsequently issued
shares of common stock. The Rights, which will expire on
December 21, 2004, are initially not exercisable, and until
becoming exercisable will trade only with the associated
common stock. After the Rights become exercisable, each
Right entitles the holder to purchase at a specified exercise
price one share of common stock. The Rights will become
exercisable after the earlier to occur of (i) ten days following

a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated

or associated persons have acquired beneficial ownership

of 15% or more of the outstanding common stock or (ii) ten
business days (or such later date as determined by the
Board of Directors) following the commencement of, or
announcement of an intention to make, a tender or
exchange offer the consummation of which would result

in beneficial ownership by a person or group of 15% or
more of the outstanding common stock. If the Company
were acquired in a merger or other business combination
transaction or 50% or more of its consolidated assets or
earning power were sold, proper provision would be made
so that each Right would entitle its holder to purchase, upon
the exercise of the Right at the then current exercise price
(currently the exercise price is $14.81), that number of shares
of common stock of the acquiring company having a market
value of twice the exercise price of the Right. If any person or
group were to acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more
of the Company’s outstanding common stock, each Right
would entitle its holder (other than such acquiring person
whose Rights would become void) to purchase, upon the
exercise of the Right at the then current exercise price, that
number of shares of the Company’s common stock having a
market value on the date of such 15% acquisition of twice
the exercise price of the Right. The Board of Directors may
at its option, at any time after such 15% acquisition but
prior to the acquisition of more than 50% of the Company’s
outstanding common stock, exchange all or part of the then
outstanding and exercisable Rights (other than those held by
such acquiring person whose Rights would become void) for
common stock at an exchange rate per Right of one-half the
number of shares of common stock receivable upon exercise
of a Right. The Board of Directors may, at any time prior to
such 15% acquisition, redeem all the Rights at a redemption
price of $.01 per Right.

Shares reserved for future issuances - As of March 2, 2002,
the Company had approximately 114,416,000 shares
reserved for future issuances under the stock plans and

the share purchase rights plan.
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NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for each of the last three
fiscal years consists of (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Federal:

Current................. $ 56207 $50455  $ 39463

Deferred................ 2,110 583 355
State:

Current................. 3,909 3,368 1,890

Deferred................ (128) 152 1,370
Foreign:

Current................. 910 1,032 809

$ 58,788 $55590  §$ 43,887

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 2, 2002 and

March 3, 2001 are comprised of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory ..., $ 2166 $ 1,727
Deferred compensation. .............. 9,129 7,292
Accrued averagerent ................. 8,476 7,784
Losses on a foreign subsidiary........... 3,948 3,301
Self insurance reserves................ 2,408 910
Fixedassets,net ...................... - 795
Other ..o 2,470 2,326
28,597 24,135
Valuation allowance..................... (3,948) (3,301)
Total deferred tax assets............... 24,649 20,834
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixedassets,net ...................... (1,577 -
Total deferred tax liabilities . ........... (1,577) -
Net deferred taxassets................... $ 23,072 $ 20,834

The Company has settled and closed all Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) examinations of the Company’s tax returns
for all years through fiscal 1999. An IRS audit of fiscal years
2000 and 2001 is expected to begin in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2003. For financial reporting purposes, a valuation
allowance exists at March 2, 2002 to offset the deferred tax
asset relating to the losses of a foreign subsidiary.

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s non-U.S.
subsidiaries amounted to approximately $22.6 million

at March 2, 2002. These earnings are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, no additional U.S.
income taxes or non-U.S. withholding taxes have been .
provided. Determination of the amount of additional taxes
that would be payable if such earnings were not considered
indefinitely reinvested is not practical.

The difference between income taxes at the statutory federal
income tax /r_a'}e of 35% in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, and

(e
income tax reported in the consolidated statements of

operations is as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Tax at statutory federal

income taxrate ......... $55649 $52584 $41,514
State income taxes,

net of federal benefit .... | 3,387 3,200 2,526
Work opportunity tax

credit, foreign tax

credit and R&E credit. ... (202) 207) (283)
Net foreign income taxed

atlowerrates............ (101) (1,048) {960)
Othernet ................. 55 1,061 1,090

$58,788 $55590 $ 43,887

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases - The Company leases certain property consisting
principally of retail stores, warehouses and material handling
and office equipment under leases expiring through the year
2021. Most retail store locations are leased for initial terms

of 10 to 15 years with varying renewal options and rent
escalation clauses. Certain leases provide for additional
rental payments based on a percentage of sales in excess

of a specified base. The Company's lease obligations are
considered operating leases, and all payments are reflected
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

During fiscal 2002, the Company sold certain store properties
for $12.6 million. These stores were leased back from
unaffiliated third parties for periods of approximately ten
years. The resulting leases are being accounted for as

operating leases. The Company deferred gains of $5.1 million
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in fiscal 2002 on these sale-leaseback transactions; the gains
are being amortized over the initial lives of the leases. Future
minimum lease commitments of these operating leases are
included in the summary below of the Company’s operating
leases. The Company had no sale-leaseback transactions in
fiscal 2001.

At March 2, 2002, the Company had the following minimum

~lease commitments in the years indicated (in thousands):

Rental expense incurred was $159,461,000, $144,035,000 and
$131,835,000, including contingent rentals of $921,000,
$979,000 and $794,000, based upon a percentage of sales,
and net of sublease incomes totaling $1,191,000, $2,650,000
and $2,141,000 in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Legal matters - There are various claims, lawsuits,
investigations and pending actions against the Company

and its subsidiaries incident to the operations of its business.

Operating Liability, if any, associated with these matters is not

Fiscal Year L‘S‘ﬁ_ determinable at March 2, 2002; however, the Company

considers them to be ordinary and routine in nature. The
2003 i $ 162315 T ‘
2004 L 158,525 Company maintains liability insurance against most of
2005 .o 145,608 these claims. While certain of the lawsuits involve substantial
2008 . 132,855 amounts, it is the Opinibn of management, after consultation
2007 e e 118,102 with counsel, that the ultimate resolution of such litigation
Thereafter .........c.o i 426,946 will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s

. financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Total lease COMUMUTNENTS ... ..vvvvvneeniennenn.n. $ 1,144,351

NOTE 10 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
Present value of total (UNAUDITED)

operating lease commitments at 10% ... $_751919 Summarized quarterly financial data for the years ended
March 2, 2002 and March 3, 2001 are set forth below
(in thousands except per share amounts):
Three Months Ended
Fiscal 2002 6/2/01 9/1/01 12/1/01 3/2/02
NEESAES oottt e $ 325,387 357,248 387,360 478,561
Grossprofit ................ e $ 134,914 137,539 165,408 211,900
NELINCOIMIE ..ottt e e $ 12,345 13,802 25,046 49,016
Basic earningspershare ...............ciiiiiiiiii i $ 13 .15 27 53
Diluted earnings pershare ..............cccoiviiiiiiiiiiii $ 13 14 26 51
Three Months Ended

Fiscal 2001 5/27/00 8/26/00 11/25/00 3/3/01
NEESALES .« ettt it e e $ 299,528 337,991 343,493 430,486
GIOSSPIOfIt ..ovviiiiii i $ 126,646 135,616 147,160 185,033
IS (o) o TP $ 16,877 17,715 23,569 36,489
Basic earnings pershare ... $ 17 .18 25 .38
Diluted earnings pershare ...............cooooiiiiiiii $ 17 18 24 38
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE OFFICES
Suite 600

301 Commerce Street
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
(817) 252-8000

www.pierl.com

COMMON STOCK

Approximately 40,000 shareholders of record
Traded on the New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: PIR

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND FORM 10-K REPORT
A copy of the Pier 1 Imports, Inc. Form 10-K report filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission is available by

writing the Investor Relations Department at:

Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

PO. Box 961020

Fort Worth, Texas 76161-0020

or by calling (817) 252-7835

Toll Free (888) 80-PIER1
(888) 807-4371

Investor inquiries also may be directed to that department.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP
Fort Worth, Texas

TRANSFER AGENT

Mellon Investor Services

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
Shareholder Line Toll Free (888) 884-8086

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at

10 a.m. Central Daylight Time, Thursday, June 27, 2002,

in the Brazos Room at the Renaissance Worthington Hotel,
Fort Worth, Texas.

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The following tables show the high and low closing sale

prices on such Exchange, as reported in the consolidated transaction reporting system, and the dividends paid per share, for each

quarter of fiscal 2002 and 2001.

Market Price Cash Dividends
Fiscal 2002 High Low Per Share ()
First quarter $ 14.5500 $11.1000 $.04
Second quarter 12.6500 10.3000 .04
Third quarter 14.7000 8.1300 .04
Fourth quarter 20.2400 14.5000 .04

Market Price Cash Dividends
Fiscal 2001 High Low Per Share (1)
First quarter $11.8750 $ 7.8750 $.03
Second quarter 12.7500 8.5000 .04
Third quarter 14.0000 10.4375 .04
Fourth quarter 13.8750 8.1875 .04

(1) For restrictions on the payments of dividends, see Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and

Capital Resources.
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